
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Joint Chief Executive 

Rob Barlow 
 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

9 February 2022 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee on 

Thursday, 17th February, 2022 at 6.30 pm 
in the Conference Centre, Jakemans Community Stadium (Boston United), Pilgrim Way, 

Wyberton, Boston, PE21 7NE 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Joint Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Anton Dani 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, Alan Bell, David Brown, 

Viven Edge, Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and 
Yvonne Stevens 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 

PART I – PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes (if any). 
 

B   MINUTES                                                                                          (Pages 1 - 14) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last two meetings held on the  16 
September 2021 and the 4 November 2021. 
 

Public Document Pack



C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Monday 14 February 2022.  
 
 
 

PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1   DRAFT BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL  
STRATEGY 2022-23 TO 2026-27                                                 (Pages 15 - 100) 
 

 A report by the Section 151 Officer.  
 

2   BENEFITS VERIFICATION POLICY                                           (Pages 101 - 108) 
 

 A report by the Assistant Director - Finance 
 

3   BOSTON BENEFITS VERIFICATION POLICY                          (Pages 109 - 116) 
 

 To consider resolving - That under Section 100(A)(iv) of the Local Government Act 
1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006, the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Order. 
 

4   WORK PROGRAMME                                                                 (Pages 117 - 118) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Tel. no: 01205 314226  email: 
karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Tel. no: 01205 
314226  email: karen.rist@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

4 November 2021 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, David Brown, Paul Goodale, 
Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and Yvonne Stevens 
 
Officers –  
Assistant Director - Assets and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
24   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Alan Bell and Viven Edge. 
Notice was received that Councillor Paul Goodale was attending as a substitute for 
Councillor Bell. 
 
25   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Councillors Paul Goodale, Judy Welbourn and Stephen Woodliffe declared their 
Membership of the Joint Scrutiny Panel (Minute 27 refers) and Councillor Goodale 
added that he was a Member of the Town Board.  Councillor Tom Ashton declared his 
Membership of East Lindsey District Council’s Executive and, as such, would not take 
participate in the debate on this item.   
 
26   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
27   JOINT BBC-ELDC SCRUTINY OF THE STRATEGIC ALLIANCE 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committees of Boston and East Lindsey commissioned a 
Joint Scrutiny Panel to undertake a review of the Strategic Alliance and merged 
workforce. 
 
The Chairman of the Panel presented its report on the review to the Committee, asking 
Members to recommend it for consideration at the next full Council meeting. 
 
The Panel met 3 times, interviewed 6 witnesses and conducted a survey of Boston 
Borough and East Lindsey District Councillors to canvass their views. The scope of the 
Panel’s work, the questions put to witnesses, the results of the survey and the notes of 
the Panel’s meetings were appended to the report. 
 
The Panel Chairman explained that managing scrutiny across the two authorities was 
not easy in terms of aligning Councillors’ diaries to attend joint meetings.  The Panel 
appreciated the support, guidance and expertise from the Scrutiny, Safeguarding & 
Executive Support Officer and the Assistant Director – Corporate and were grateful to 
the witnesses who participated in the process.  
 
Witnesses gave a wholly positive picture of the progress of the alliance, illustrated by 
examples of how teams across the two Councils had come together. The Panel sought, 
and received, assurance that the projected savings outlined in the original agreement 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 
 

were being achieved. The Panel asked for examples of how collaborative working had 
furthered opportunities for both Councils and further suggested ways in which the 
alliance could effectively use combined power to achieve successful outputs. Members 
had asked about how the merging cultures of two and, now, three Councils could be 
successfully managed and had highlighted ways of doing this in its recommendations to 
create a common identity for this large area of Lincolnshire.  
   
The Panel sent out a questionnaire to all Councillors to gauge their views on how the 
alliance was progressing.  Several common themes emerged from the 15 responses 
received, which formed the basis of some of the Panel’s recommendations. These 
included clear lines of communications, cementing relationships, alignment of policies 
and joint meetings.  
 
The Panel Chairman added that not all Councillors were positive about the alliance and 
many had not responded to the questionnaire.  
 
The Vice-Chairman then addressed the Committee and explained that  
 
The Panel agreed the following recommendations. 
1. That staff ‘snapshot’ surveys are reported to Overview / Scrutiny on a 6-monthly 

basis along with staff turnover figures, in order to monitor any significant changes; 
2. Review the ICT roadmap priorities and ensure that shared email addresses for 

officers is given the highest priority; 
3. To develop a shared strategy to ensure that staff are valued and given opportunities 

to progress, with a view to enhancing recruitment and retention; 
4. To better communicate to staff, councillors, and residents any relevant updates or 

priorities, and to celebrate the successes across the alliance; 
5. To provide opportunities for more collaborative working for all councillors, such as 

scrutiny panels, project groups, and other shared opportunities across the alliance / 
partnership, especially where there is commonality, e.g., licensing and planning 
policy; 

6. To provide an opportunity for councillors to visit partner districts to meet other 
councillors and gain an awareness of the ‘place’ of other districts; 

7. Move to an alignment of policies, e.g., procurement, climate change, and recycling; 
8. To encourage the development of a strong sense of identity within the 3 areas of the 

alliance and the opportunities that they offer. This will help develop a sustainable, 
resilient, and vibrant economy and population; 

9. To prepare a strategy so the partnership is fully prepared for the possibility of 
devolution. 

10. That the alliance should work together to lobby the government to ensure the 
financial sustainability of the IDBs on which the residents and the land of the 3 
councils heavily rely; 

11. To convene a shared scrutiny panel of the 3 Councils in the new Partnership at the 
end of the first and second year, in order to undertake a review of the Partnership 
and merged workforce. 

 
The Panel’s Vice-Chairman reiterated that it had not been easy to get Members together 
and it would be more difficult with a third authority, but it was essential to make the 
process productive and allow everyone to have their say. 
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 

 

The alliance encouraged each authority to retain its identity and sovereignty, which was 
crucial. More joint working would be beneficial and it was essential that scrutiny 
committees monitored surveys to maintain momentum and ensure staff were behind it 
because some concerns had been raised. There would be a report to a future scrutiny 
committee and an annual review. 
 
During debate, there was concern about some comments in Appendix D and the issues 
raised, particularly regarding communications. Members were aware of the pressure on 
staff, which needed close monitoring.  It was felt the Partnership was asking a great deal 
of senior staff in terms of workload and the geological area that they had to cover, which 
needed to be addressed to ensure they did not lose key personnel.  There seemed to be 
more negative comments than positive; however, the focus had to be on the positive in 
order to move forward. 
 
Other Panel Members commented that it had been good to discuss matters with ELDC 
Members and find they had similar views. It was satisfying that they had produced 
recommendations and their work had achieved a way forward.  The survey was now two 
months old and some Councillors might have changed their views.  It would be essential 
to review matters six-monthly and proceed with three-way scrutiny, which was the right 
way forward. 
 
A Member expressed concern in case the recommendations were accepted by one 
authority’s executive body and not another’s. The Portfolio Holder explained that 
Executive Members did not work in isolation; they held joint liaison meetings and this 
would continue with the three authorities. There had been many changes since the 
process began and some negatives had arisen, so there might be compromises, but the 
process was bringing the positives together.  It was a great achievement from the Joint 
Scrutiny Panel, demonstrating that joint scrutiny worked well. 
 
The Finance Portfolio Holder expressed surprise about comments concerning 
communications, as Members had been given all officers’ contact details and responses 
were received within two days.  
 
The Leader commented that there were many positives from the process and that 
partnership working was an established way of making progress. 
 

RESOLVED: That the recommendations of the Joint Scrutiny Panel be 
recommended to Full Council at its next meeting. 

 
28   LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2022/23 

 
The Head of Revenues and Benefits presented a report on the review of the Council Tax 
Support (CTS) scheme with proposals for the next financial year 2022/23. 
 
The Committee was asked to review the scheme to date and the proposals for the 
2022/23 scheme as part of the ongoing consultation and make recommendations on the 
proposals for Cabinet consideration on 8th December.  The proposed 2022/23 scheme 
would be submitted to Full Council for formal approval by Full Council in January 2022.    
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 
 

The report contained details of the operation of the previous Council Tax Benefit 
scheme for comparison purposes.  It also contained the projected costs of the scheme.  
However, it was pointed out that the level of CTS always fluctuated throughout the year 
and the exact expenditure would only be known at the end of the financial year.  The 
costs of the CTS scheme were borne by the major precepting authorities, 11% of which 
was borne by the Council.   
 
Members were reminded that the CTS scheme related purely to working age people, as 
the scheme for pensioners continued to be prescribed by Government and they received 
100%.  The Council had taken the local decision to protect war pensioners and this had 
continued since the scheme’s introduction.  The scheme continued to be means-tested 
in the same way as the previous benefit scheme.  Entitlement for working age claimants 
was capped at 75%; therefore, they had to pay at least 25% of their council tax.   
 
CTS was linked to claims for Universal Credit (UC) and the decision had been taken to 
uprate CTS in line with the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP).   
 
Previously, CTS claims had to be reassessed every time there was a change to UC.  
However, in 2021/22 a decision had been taken to make a change to the scheme so 
that any UC changes would only be reassessed every three months, though this could 
be overridden if necessary.  This provided stability in terms of CTS awards and was 
working well.   
 
The DWP had not published its plans yet for completing the full migration to UC for 
working age claimants and the timescale therefore remained uncertain, but it was now 
apparent that it would not be complete until 2025.  The numbers claiming UC had 
significantly increased, particularly since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic.   
 

In considering the options for the 2022/23 CTS scheme, given the ongoing uncertainties 
due to the pandemic and the migration to UC, there was no overriding reason for 
fundamental change at this time.  Reductions in the level of support could have a 
significant impact claimants’ ability to pay and the Council’s ability to collect money; it 
would be counter-productive to try to make savings.    

 
Through the consultation, views for 2022/23 were being sought on whether the Council 
should retain its current scheme for the next financial year, to provide continuity.  Each 
year the Government reviewed and, generally, increased the amount people needed to 
live on for the calculation of welfare benefit.  By applying the same changes to the CTS 
scheme, the Council would ensure that it remained up to date with the DWP allowances 
and premiums each year.  

 
Separate to the consultation proposals, an administrative change was proposed for 
introduction into the CTS scheme, which would not change the core scheme policy, its 
intent or principles, but would make it easier for new claimants to access CTS.  Most 
new claims for CTS were received by claimants who had applied for UC.  Applications 
for UC were made to the DWP, applications for CTS needed to be made to the local 
authority.  This meant that the claimant had to deal with two organisations and make 
separate applications to get the help they needed.  Where a UC claimant indicated they 
would like to apply CTS when making their UC claim, details were sent to the relevant 
council through the Universal Credit Data Sharing hub (UCDS).  The introduction of a 
link to the award of UC for CTS would remove the current requirement for the customer 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 

 

to make a separate application for CTS.  It was proposed that for 2022/23 the scheme 
was amended to enable a UCDS new claim notice from the DWP, to be treated as a 
CTS application, thereby simplifying the process for the claimant. 
 
Members welcomed the proposals, including the administrative change to link claims for 
UC to the CTS scheme. 
 
In response to questions, the Head of Revenues and Benefits explained that an element 
of Government grant funding for the CTS scheme remained, but the amount could no 
longer be identified.  People who did not claim UC would have to apply directly to the 
Council for CTS.  There were a number of discounts applicable to CTS, including the 
single person discount and some discretionary discounts.  The Revenues and Benefits 
department did have a significantly high workload, particularly as was also responsible 
for delivering Test & Trace support payments.  The workload was at a peak and it was 
very difficult to forecast ongoing levels due to the pandemic.  CTS expenditure was 
currently decreasing, but this was also very difficult to forecast.   
 
Members expressed concern about the department’s workload and felt that 
consideration should be given to taking on additional staff. 
 
The Portfolio Holder advised Members that the department had achieved a significant 
reduction in the backlog of work since the transfer to PSPS.   
 

Action: SH 
Advise Members of the length of delay for claimants making paper-based applications 
for CTS. 

 

RESOLVED that it be recommended to Cabinet that: 
 
1. The current Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme be retained for 2022/23 to 

provide continuity. 
 
2. The CTS scheme be uprated in line with the Department for Work and Pensions 

(DWP).   
 
3. The CTS scheme be linked to the award for Universal Credit to enable a new 

claim notice to be sent from the DWP through the Universal Credit Data 
Sharing hub that will be treated as a CTS application, thereby removing the 
current requirement for the claimant to make a separate application for CTS 
and so simplify the process. 

 
4. Staffing levels be closely monitored and additional staff be recruited as 

required. 

 
29   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) PEER REVIEW - PROGRESS 

UPDATE 
 

The Assistant Director – Corporate presented a report on the delivery of 
recommendations put forward by the Local Government Association following their 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 
 

Corporate Peer Review of the Council in 2019 and a subsequent Health Check of the 
Communications Service.   
 
The table at Appendix A provided the status of each recommendation, which had been 
rated according to red, amber and green.  The Committee was asked to note the 
significant progress made to deliver the recommendations.  Of course, some 
recommendations had been superseded because the  Strategic Alliance and the South 
East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership had taken place since the peer review was 
carried out and these would be reviewed again in that context.   
 
The Leader described the review as positive, with many aspects rated as ‘green’, and 
stressed the importance of promoting the borough and the Council.  The document still 
contained important matters that remained relevant that would be taken forward.   
 
Members agreed, noting the significant number of recommendations that had been 
implemented, though there was a note of caution that some matters rated green that 
were still onging, such as waste management, economic growth and the response to the 
pandemic.  It was agreed that the matters rated red needed attention, but that they 
should promote the borough and what the Council had achieved.   
 
30   ANNUAL REVIEW OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY 

 
The Deputy Leader presented a report by the Assistant Director – Corporate on the 
annual review of the Council’s Corporate Strategy. 
 
Full Council adopted the Corporate Strategy in November 2020 following consultation 
with stakeholders, including the Committee.  At that time, a commitment was made to 
review its priorities annually to ensure they remained relevant.  The report before the 
Committee was part of this review process and provided an opportunity for Committee 
Members to recommend any changes to the strategy they felt it required.  
 
The main priority focused on people and the others focused on achieving prosperity, 
environmental awareness and high quality services for the people.    
 
As discussed at its adoption, some of the strategy’s priorities aimed at a long-term vision 
and only the key building blocks for these would be in place within by 2024, but these 
would move the Council towards that vision.   
 
Members’ comments included: 

• Concern in achieving the priority relating to the environment because of the problems 
of fly tipping;  

• Acceptance that the delivery of affordable housing was currently co-funded, whereas 
the strategy could reflect a vision of where the Council provided its own housing at 
some stage in the future;  

• The reference to PE21 was confusing, as a project no longer existed in that form;  

• There should be more mention of flooding, particularly in view of a map published 
recently showing the extent of the risk of flooding in the area;  

• It was crucial that the priorities be supported by policies to ensure they were 
achieved. 

 

Page 6



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 

 

In response, the Deputy Leader explained that this was the Committee’s opportunity to 
assess whether the strategy’s priorities themselves were fit for purpose, rather than the 
performance of specific services to achieve them.   
 
The provision of affordable housing could only ever be achieved by working with 
partners, which included the use of Government grants.   
 
The statement on Inward Investment was sound in terms of ambition, but thought would 
be given to rewording the reference to PE21.   
 
The strategy only contained four priorities in order to keep the document clear and 
concise and the wording was brief to ensure it would remain flexible and did not restrict 
officers.  It was agreed that it was the policies and processes behind the priorities that 
would take the strategy forward.   
 
The Leader referred to the Environment Agency’s significant investment in the area as 
well as the operation of the barrier and reassured Members that flooding was high on 
the agenda and likely to be the first policy adopted across the three authorities of the 
South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Corporate Strategy and its Corporate Priorities be supported 
and the Committee’s comments be reported to Cabinet on 8th December 2021. 

 
31   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Committee considered its current work programme along with Quarter 1 
performance information and the draft Forward Plan. 
 
A Member raised the issue of the licensing of private rented accommodation and 
stressed the importance of addressing the problems arising from over-crowded 
properties as soon as possible in view of the adverse effect on the welfare of the people 
living there and those that lived nearby.   
 
The Assistant Director - Assets explained that a report would be presented to the 
Committee in February, explaining the exact details of the legal framework for housing 
control and suggested Members could consider establishing a Task and Finish Group to 
look into the details in depth to see what action the Council could possibly take.   
 
The Deputy Leader suggested that an all-Member Briefing could be held on the matter 
in order to fully inform Members before the Committee considered the officer’s report in 
February.   
 

Action: AF 
Seek to arrange an all-Member Briefing to cover the legal framework for housing control 
with respect to Houses in Multiple Occupation and housing regulation in general, to take 
place before the Committee’s meeting on 17th February 2022. 

 

Action: JC 
Amend the work programme as follows: 
 

Page 7



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
4 November 2021 
 

13th January 2022 
 

• Lincolnshire Discretionary Housing Assistance Policy 

• Cultural Strategy 

• Annual Safeguarding Report 
 
17th February 2022 
 

• Centrepoint Outreach and Council Homelessness Services 

• The Legal Framework for Housing Control  
 
7th April 2022 
 

• Mayoralty item 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.45 pm 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - CORPORATE & 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE 
 

16 September 2021 

Present: Councillor Stephen Woodliffe (Chairman), Councillor Anton Dani (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Alison Austin, David Brown, Paul Goodale, 
Martin Howard, Frank Pickett, Judith Skinner and Yvonne Stevens 
 
In attendance:  Councillor Katie Chalmers, Councillor Jonathan Noble and Councillor 
Judy Welbourn,  
 
Officers –  Interim Deputy Chief Executive and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Guests:  
 

• John Turner, Chief Executive, Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

• (CCG) 

• Sandra Williamson, Chief Operating Officer, East Locality, Lincolnshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) 

• Simon Evans, Chief Operating Officer, United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust 
(ULHT) 

• Dr Andrew Ian Dodderel GP, former clinical lead in East Lincolnshire and former 
Chairman of East Lincolnshire CCG 

 
 
18   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meetings of 6th and 20th July and 17th August 2021 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
19   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Alan Bell and Viven Edge. 
Notice was received that Councillor Paul Goodale was attending as a substitute for 
Councillor Bell. 
 
20   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
21   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
22   PILGRIM HOSPITAL OPERATING MODEL 

 
The Chief Executive of the CCG addressed the meeting to give an overview of the 
current situation. 

Page 9



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
16 September 2021 
 

 
Structure, operation and funding 
 
The CCG received approximately £1.3bn per ann from the Government with which it 
planned, organised and commissioned the health services in the best interests of the 
people of Lincolnshire.   
 
There were a number of provider organisations in the county, i.e. 3 NHS trusts, including 
United Lincolnshire Hospital NHS Trust, responsible for Pilgrim Hospital; the 
Lincolnshire Partnership Foundation Trust, which provided mental health services; and 
the Community Health Trust, responsible for all community services, such as community 
nurses, community hospitals and therapy services.  In addition, there were the 
ambulance service, 85 general practices, plus pharmacists, optometrists etc.  The vast 
majority of NHS staff provided direct health care to the population and the CCG was 
responsible for co-ordinating those services following Government guidance and was 
managed by NHS England.   
 
It was crucial for all these to work together as one Lincolnshire NHS team with available 
resources to serve the population as well as possible.  There had previously been 4 
CCGs in Lincolnshire and these had been merged into one.  It was believed a single 
CCG would prevent duplication and provide a better opportunity to deliver co-ordinated 
care, and to work closely with partners across the county, including local authorities, 
care and voluntary sectors. 
 
The NHS was on the journey to “integrated” care, to provide more joined up care for 
people. 
 
The Government was restructuring the NHS and it was expected that a new body would 
be formed from 1st April 2022, the Integrated Care NHS Board, which would take on all 
roles and responsibilities of the CCGs, which would then cease to exist.   
 
Day to day care 
 
The last 18 months had been a traatic and difficult period generally and for the NHS in 
particular.  The opening up of society was welcomed and they were proud of their role 
within the vaccination programme, but the pandemic was still very prevalent and would 
continue to have a considerable affect for the next 6-9 months and probably for years to 
come. 
 
Colleagues had done an amazing job, but were fatigued and everything was being done 
to support services as they advanced into what would be a very difficult winter. 
 
The Trust still had Covid-19 patients, 61 at that moment in time, and 5 had died since 1st 
September 2021.   
 
The Urgent & Emergency Care service was literallly ‘on its knees’ due to demand and 
had been on the highest level of alert for the last few weeks.  The ambulance services 
were waiting for long periods to discharge patients to A&E and A&E patients were more 
regularly waiting over 12 hours, which was a rare occurrence before the pandemic.  
Demand for urgent day to day care was huge. 
 

Page 10



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
16 September 2021 

 

Elective operations 
 
There had been regular cancellations of elective operations across the county.  ULHT 
had cancelled a few, but generally, was working well to hold to their commitments.   
 
There were 61,000 Lincolnshire people on waiting lists in July 2020.  There were 81,000 
in July 2021.  Prior to the pandemic, virtually no one had to wait longer than 1 year.  
Now, 2,200 had waited over 1 year and some had waited longer than 2 years.   
It was an extremely difficult situation.   
 
Grantham Hospital had performed comparatively well due to special arrangements put 
in place to protect provision of cancer care and elective care and were just about 
meeting targets for urgent cases.  Although numbers were “dreadful”, they compared 
well to most other parts of the country.   
 
Mental Health 
 
Demand for mental health services had increased, but not significantly as yet; excellent 
services were in place and were well prepared.  There was significant concern about 
mental health issues in children and young people that were yet to manifest themselves.   
 
Vaccinations 
 
The vaccination programme had been extremely successful in Lincolnshire and was 
consistently exceeding targets.  It had progressed well into the 16/17 year old band, and 
61% of the population had been vaccinated compared to 53% nationally.  The Trust had 
been amongst the first to offer vaccinations to care homes. 
 
GP Services 
 
GP practices were under immense pressure.  They had never been busier, which led to 
public frustration regarding access to services, and it was a difficult situation.   
 
Winter period 
 
The flu vaccination programme had begun, but there was much concern about the 
forthcoming winter months and worry that flu might be even more significant than Covid-
19 due to loss of immunity.   
 
Configuration of Hospital Services 
 
They had been looking at the configuration of hospital services for a number of years.  A 
pubic consultation was imminent regarding some services and this would appear in the 
media soon.   
 
Questions and Answers 
 
All four guests then responded to a range of questions and concerns raised by 
Members, some of which they had submitted in advance.  These included situations 
relating to the prescription of medication following hospital discharge, delays in obtaining 
face-to-face appointments with GPs, and difficulties experienced by some non-English 

Page 11



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
16 September 2021 
 

speaking patients.  Answers provided also covered the allocation of funding, the long-
standing shortage of doctors and nurses, and expenditure on agency staff and locum 
cover.   
 
Answers to key concerns were answered as follows, in summary. 
 
Pilgrim Hospital was regarded as a vital asset for the NHS, Lincolnshire and local 
people, and the NHS authorities were fully committed to it.  This was demonstrated by 
the intention to redevelop the A&E department.  Detailed work on this was currently 
taking place and local capital resources were being added to the funding provided by the 
Government.  This would be the largest ever investment in a single ULHT project. 
 
The removal of mental health services from Pilgrim Hospital would significantly support 
the expansion of acute services and help address the challenges of Covid-19.  The 
contribution lost as a result of moving mental health services was a small amount in the 
context of the trust’s finances.   
 
All NHS services had reopened; the vast majority had remained open throughout the 
pandemic.  There had been a separate issue recently with respect to a shortage of 
bottles for carrying out blood tests.  A number of screening tests had been delayed 
because of the international shortage of bottles, but blood tests were rising imminently 
(on 17th September).   
 
Work was ongoing with a private partner to clear the backlog of work.  This was a 
national effort and would allow the NHS to catch up but it was not known how long this 
would take.  Using Grantham Hospital as a hub for elective care had been hugely 
successful.  There was not as much capacity within the private sector in Lincolnshire, 
but substantial progress was still being made.  Also, they were working on links with 
other areas, such as Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire, where there was more capacity.  
Despite there being substantial NHS vacancies before the pandemic, significant 
progress had been made in terms of filling positions in urgent care.  However, the 
backlog would not be addressed in the short-term.  National and local plans, including 
timescales, were being worked on and would be released soon.   
 
ULHT’s plan for the future of Pilgrim Hospital was a continued expansion of improved 
services.  In the next few years, its emergency department would more than double in 
size, which would require state of the art services behind it.  The 5-year improvement 
plan aligned services with that in mind. Staffing of the urgent services had increased by 
20% already over the past year and the workforce was reviewed annually to match 
demand.  They worked closely with Lincolnshire Community Health Services, which took 
care of a significant number of patients who arrived at the emergency department in 
their at urgent treatment centres.   
 
They were not planning substantial closures of services; however, they would continue 
to focus on centres of excellence and centralise services where possible to improve 
outcomes for patients whilst ensuring they did not detract from health equality and 
access.  It was not certain whether the overall changes and restructures at government 
level would impact the plan as it currently stood.   
 

Page 12



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
16 September 2021 

 

Centralisation was quite a different matter to closures. They were not considering full 
closures of any services and before embarking on any changes to services there was 
always a long period of debate and consultation to engage and involve the public.   
 
The local implementation of the national drive to centralise cardiac and major trauma 
services had seen the designation of Lincoln Hospital as the primary cardiac centre and 
both Lincoln and Boston Hospitals became trauma centres, neither becoming a major 
trauma centre.  However, Boston continued to operate a cardiac service and still cared 
for cardiac patients, but what they also had access to specialised expertise 24/7 in a 
way that could not be delivered at a single site.   
 
With respect to stroke services, hyper-acute patients were taken to Lincoln.  This had 
been happening throughout the pandemic, and it had improved access for some 
patients who required the hyper-acute element of the service.  A consultation exercise 
regarding services would commence in the next weeks and proposals regarding stroke 
services would be included.   
 
With respect to the death rate of inpatients at Pilgrim Hospital, the “crude death rate”, 
which did not take account of any changes to the expected death rate, was 2.5% across 
ULHT and 3.3% at Pilgrim Hospital.  This was very high, but was much less so when 
standardised hospital indictors specifically used for benchmarking were considered.  
There had been substantial improvements in services and this would impact on the 
mortality rate, but it had been affected by Covid-19. 
 
The Trust had been in special measures prior to Covid-19.  They had been working with 
the Care Quality Commission (CQC) over the last two and a half years and had made a 
number of substantial improvements, for example, in terms of urgent care; the time 
taken for in-patient treatment; and a 70% reduction in ambulance delays.  CQC 
continued their work throughout the pandemic and the feedback received from them 
confirmed that the measures had all led to positive improvements.  The CQC had 
removed a number of the conditions that they stipulated as areas of major concerns, 
one of which was around elements of children's services.   
 
It was hoped to announce shortly that a number of those sections and enforcement 
elements would be removed reflecting the substantial progress made in terms of 
improving the quality of services, and that will have an impact on mortality. However, it 
had to be borne in mind that over the 18 months they had experienced the greatest 
challenge in the history of the organisation and this had taken a toll on many services 
and the workforce, and would have an impact for some time to come in terms of their 
ability to recover.   
 
With respect to the levels of bureaucracy, they wanted to ensure that the bulk of 
resources went on direct patient care on the frontline and other expenditure to be as low 
as possible.  With the move from four CCGs to one, expenditure had been cut by 20%.  
This was not an additional layer of bureaucracy, however; it added responsibilities going 
forward as they developed into an integrated care system.   
 
The emergency urology service operated at Lincoln and consultants did often have to 
travel across county to treat patients.  This model was developed by the urology team 
after examining how they could most effectively deliver services, getting the best 
outcomes for patients and improving access, and had been debated in-depth. 

Page 13



Overview & Scrutiny - Corporate & Community Committee 
16 September 2021 
 

 
Criticisms on the Trust’s patient engagement were taken on board in terms of the need 
to increase publicity and face-to-face contact.  Although a range of engagement 
measures were used, including surveys and events, which were well publicised in the 
media and through social media, such feedback was valued in order to make further 
improvements.   
 
Various other issues of concern were raised, from unacceptable waiting times for 
ambulances to the poor condition of the hospital car park.  Specific complaints made 
regarding to communication by, and with, two medical practices in Boston that would be 
taken up with the practices the following day.  The NHS response to the pandemic was 
discussed at length.   
 
The Chairman requested that written answers be provided for all other questions 
submitted by Members that the guests had not had time to address. 
 
Members ended the meeting with thanks all NHS staff for their immense and ongoing 
work and commitment to treating patients during the pandemic. 
 
23   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Assistant Director - Assets advised Members that the report on the Case 
Management System would not be ready for the Committee’s next meeting on 4th 
November 2021.  Instead, the Senior Leadership Team ask that the Committee receive 
a report on the actions taken by the Council in response to the Peer Review of 2019, 
which would be particularly important as the Strategic Alliance moved towards the three-
way partnership with South Holland District.   
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 9.00 pm 
 
 
[The full meeting can be viewed at Corporate and Community Committee - YouTube.] 
 
 

Page 14

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aVZ-acaRCnQ


 

 

 

 

 
 

REPORT TO: Corporate and Community Committee 

DATE: 17th February 2022 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

PURPOSE:  

Draft Budget Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 

– 2026/27 for consultation 

 

To ask the committee to review the attached draft budget papers 

and feedback to Cabinet prior to the final budget being set. 

KEY DECISION: Yes 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Jonathan Noble 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development 

Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

Attached to this report is the draft detail of the 2022/23 budget, the 5 year Medium Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) from 2022/23 to 2026/27. The report also includes the recommended 

level of Council Tax for 2022/23. 

The proposed budget shows that efficiencies will be required to support the medium term 

financial strategy (MTFS). 

The Capital Programme shows that the Council will undertake a large number of projects due to 

the significant Towns Funding that has been secured which will deliver a number of schemes to 

improve the district. 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 15

Agenda Item 1



 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee is asked to consider the attached draft budget and the Council Tax increase and 
make comments, which will be fed back to Cabinet as part of the consultation prior to the 
budget’s approval at Full Council on 7th March 2022 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To comply with the budgetary and policy framework.  

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

To amend the draft MTFS before releasing for consultation. 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1.  The attached Budget Report and Financial Policies set out the Council’s Revenue and 

Capital Budgets for 2022/23, the MTFS to 2026/27 and associated financial strategies.  

 

1.2. The preparation of the budget for 2022/23 has been a detailed process involving officer 

working groups, Management Team and member meetings. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

2.1 The attached report and appendices detail the following: 
 

• The estimated total resources and expenditure over the MTFS period. 
• The budget assumptions that have been used in developing the 2022/23 budget 
 and Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
• The estimated budget pressures that the Council must address over the medium 

term. 
• The anticipated position with the Council’s reserves over the medium term. 
• The anticipated savings targets for future years and the ongoing delivery of these 

savings via Annual Delivery Plans and efficiencies from the South and East Lincolnshire 
Councils Partnership. 

• Risks associated with the budget and medium term financial strategy. 
• The proposed capital programme and Capital Strategy. 
 
 

3. CONCLUSION 

 

3.1. After detailed work the draft MTFS and associated Strategies require review before the 

final budget is set. 

 

 

Page 16



 

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

This report enables Boston Borough Council to set a budget and a level of Council Tax for 2022/23. 

 

IMPLICATIONS 
 

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

None 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

None 

STAFFING 

The Equality Act requires Boston Borough Council to consider any equality impacts in relation to 

staff from these plans. As projects within the programme are developed a draft impact assessment 

will be discussed with Trades Unions and staff, and especially as individual projects are delivered.  

 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

This report is required by virtue of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the 

Localism Act 2011.  

 

DATA PROTECTION 

None 

FINANCIAL 

As contained with the appendices to the report.  
 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

Contained in section 8 of the budget report  

 
STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

The Council has a legal duty to consult residents on its draft budget proposals. Views expressed 

during the consultation period will be included within the financial budget setting report. 

 

REPUTATION 

None 

 

Page 17



 

CONTRACTS 

None 

CRIME AND DISORDER 

None 

 

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

New Equality Impact Assessments will be developed and published wherever these are required 

and will be made available during the management and decision-making of the Programme.  

 

HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

None 

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

ACRONYMS 

None 

 

CONSULTATION 
The full public consultation exercise on the draft budget is underway. Members and the public are 
being asked for their comments, with a summary being presented to Cabinet and Council on 23rd 
February. 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Budget Report 2022/23 

APPENDIX 1 MTFS by Portfolio 

APPENDIX 2 MTFS by Service Area 

APPENDIX 3 Corporate Charging Policy 2022/23 

APPENDIX 4 Proposed Fees and Charges 2022/23 

APPENDIX 5 Earmarked Reserves 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 

Page 18



Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Financial Performance Quarter 2 

2021/22 

Cabinet Agenda 8th December 2021 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Cabinet via Decision Notice 

Audit & Governance Committee 7th February 2022 

 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director Finance 

Sknowles@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Signed off by: Christine Marshall, Deputy Chief Executive 

Corporate Development 

Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk 

 

Approved for publication: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for 

Finance 

 

 

Page 19

mailto:Sknowles@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Christine.Marshall@sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY COMMITTEE: 17th FEBRUARY 2022 
 

REPORT OF JONATHAN NOBLE, FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

(Authors: Christine Marshall (Deputy Chief Executive Corporate Development) and 
Samantha Knowles (Assistant Director - Finance)) 

 
BUDGET SETTING REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY (MTFS) 

2022/23 – 2026/27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 21



Page 2 of 32 

 

 

CONTENTS PAGE 
 
SECTION CONTENT PAGE NUMBER 
 Portfolio Holder introduction 3 
1 Executive Summary and Introduction 5 
2 Budget Assumptions 7 
3 Resources 9 
4 Spending Plans 18 
5 Council Tax Requirement 20 
6 Other Budget Issues 21 
7 Reserves 22 
8 Consultation 24 
9 
10 

Savings Targets 
South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership Plans 

25 
26 

11 Risk and Sensitivity 27 
12 Capital Programme 29 
13 Options 31 
14 Reasons for Recommendations 31 
15 Recommendations 31 
 
 
 
Appendices:  

  

1 Summary by Portfolio Area – Overall   
2 Summary by Service Area – Overall    
3 
4 

Corporate Charging Policy 
Fees and Charges 

 

5 Reserves Statement  
6 
 

Capital Strategy – 2022/23 update, including Asset Management Plan and 
Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 (To be included with Final 
Budget Report) 

 

7    
8 
  
                                                  

Pay Policy (To be included with Final Budget Report) 
Internal Drainage Board commentary (To be included with final Budget Report) 
 
 

 

P
age 22



Page 3 of 32 

 

 

FOREWORD TO THE BUDGET FROM COUNCILLOR JONATHAN NOBLE - FINANCE PORTFOLIO HOLDER  
 

The 2022/23 budget and medium term outlook has been produced during a period of unprecedented uncertainty and change and it 
is inevitable that the financial and service delivery challenges that have faced councils for the last few years will continue for some 
time. 
 
The Chancellor’s 2021 Spending Review in October set out the Government’s overall public sector spending plans for the year 
2022/23 and it is anticipated that the governments ongoing response to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent recovery will 
continue to present challenges to the public purse and therefore to wider local authority finances as a whole. 
 
Using the Government’s figures, the real change in Boston’s Core Spending Power across the five years to 2020/21 was over 20%, 
with grant reductions well in excess of this. This meant that the Council’s focus has been on finding savings in a period of austerity 
and almost £3m of net budget reductions have been achieved since 2011, enabling annual balanced budgets to be set and delivered. 
 
Despite this the Council has been proactive in its response to these pressures and the pandemic, firstly with the decision to become 
a shareholder in Public Sector Partnership Services Limited (PSPS) in April 2021, agreeing the transfer of services such as Human 
Resources, Revenues and Benefits and Financial Services to PSPS with a view to achieving savings over the next five years.  This 
represents a significant investment in these “back office” functions with the council in future being able to benefit from a share of the 
scaleable savings as services become more efficient and effective alongside services already delivered by PSPS to the original 
shareholders East Lindsey Distict and South Holland District Councils. 
 
In addition to this the decision to form the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership alongside South Holland and East 
Lindsey District Councils in October 2021, also demonstrates the councils continued commitment to its partners across the county 
with the partnership using the combined expertise of officers and members across three councils to maintain and improve services 
for its residents along with ambition to save £42m over a ten year period across the three councils 
 
This year the council was also at the forefront of the response to the COVID-19 Pandemic supporting businesses and residents 
across the borough through the passporting over £30m of grants and support.  During this period the council has also received 
government support totalling £2m to help alleviate some of the additional pressures felt during the pandemic including a reduction in 
Councils income from certain services such as Leisure, Parking, Planning, Building Control and Bereavement Services. 
 
Despite this over the coming years the Council will support a number major developments within the Borough, with £21m from the 
Government’s Towns Fund to develop an innovative regeneration plan for the town, ongoing positive new house building numbers,  
progress with the Quadrant development and release of Housing Infrastructure Fund monies. 
 

P
age 23



Page 4 of 32 

 

 

The financial regime following the conclusion of the government’s Spending Review, will determine the Council’s future financial 
landscape and constraints and opportunities in the coming years. The recent closure of large local businesses highlights the 
difficulties that the economy faces, whilst the changing way that people shop is impacting on the viability of town centres across the 
country. These changes mean that there are potentially significant risks to future funding levels, which will require careful 
management and planning. The challenge of delivering balanced budgets will therefore remain a key issue going forward. 
 
In support of this the overall finances and risk management processes of the Council are robust, and alongside the annual budget, 
the quarterly performance reporting process will provide updates on the impacts experienced as things become clearer. 
 
In 2022/23 a budget is proposed that allows expenditure to be financed through the use of reserves in order to smooth the impact of 
the councils ongoing pressure, however savings will be required going forward as a result of service cost pressures, income levels 
dropping, reduced business rates growth and the ending of the New Homes Bonus. This approach will mean that the Council can 
continue to provide services whilst also supporting its overall objectives. The Council will continue to strive to be as efficient as 
possible in all its work, building on the South and East Lincolnshire Council’s Partnership with its partners at East Lindsey and South 
Holland District Councils and PSPS, whilst ensuring it maximises the income it receives. 
 
In order to deliver its statutory budgetary duty from 2022/23 and develop proposals for a financially secure medium term, the Council 
will continue to seek innovative opportunities as it has done over the past twelve months to achieve the anticipated budget reductions 
necessary to deliver balanced budgets each year without adversely affecting service delivery and compromising its priorities.  
 
The budget for 2022/23 proposes an increase in Boston Borough Council’s council tax of £4.95 for the year, representing an increase 
of 2.50%.  This budget is designed to meet the Council’s challenges and responsibilities, and ensure that the best possible services 
continue to be provided to Boston’s residents, businesses and visitors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 24



Page 5 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
 

 2021/22 2022/23 

Boston Borough Council Precept £3,883,331 £4,067,546 

Council Tax Increase 2.57% 2.50% 

Council Tax Band D £197.91 £202.86 

Government Funding (RSG, Specific Grants and NHB) £3,324,817 £3,198,914 

Boston Town Area Committee Special Expense Account 
(Still to be agreed) 

£716,192 £739,660 

Earmarked Reserves (at 1 April) £12.589m £16.890m 

 
   

 

  
 

P
age 25



Page 6 of 32 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This report outlines the 2022/23 revenue and capital position for the General Fund and proposals for the setting of discretionary 
fees and charges. The purpose of the report is to ask Members to recommend the 2022/23 estimates (along with associated 
Policies and Strategies) and council tax level to the Council for formal approval, and for Members to be advised on the projected 
financial position through to 2026/27. 

 
1.2 The Local Government Act 2003 introduced a requirement for the Statutory S151 Officer to report on the robustness of the 

budget. The estimates have been prepared in a prudent manner, although it should be recognised that there are a number of 
elements outside of the Council’s control. Assessing the projected 2021/22 outturn position informs the reliance we can place 
on the baseline we use for setting the 2022/23 estimates.  Current projections show that the outturn for 2021/22 will be broadly 
in line with the budget, mainly as a result of several tranches of funding that have been given to authorities during the year in 
compensation for COVID-19 related lost income and spending pressures.  Key risks have been identified in section 10 of this 
report and will be mitigated through the regular budget monitoring and risk management processes in place at the Council. 

 
1.3 This year’s Medium Term Financial Strategy is set at a time of continuing significant uncertainty, change and financial 

challenges for local government. Aside from COVID-19 related pressures, there are issues such as rising inflation, welfare 
reform, uncertainty around Government funding reductions and responding to reductions in Central Government funding, (with 
a greater emphasis on business and housing growth).   

 
1.4 There are also significant changes affecting business rates. Some have already been introduced, such as the part-localisation 

of the regime from April 2013 and the 2017 revaluation exercise and others, such as the proposal to further devolve business 
rate incomes to councils are yet to come into full effect. Their impacts include the financial effect of growth or contraction in 
the local rateable value on the Council’s resource base, and increased uncertainties surrounding the extent of appeals and 
the ability to accurately forecast income into the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 26



Page 7 of 32 

 

 

2. BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS 
 
 Table 1 – Assumptions which influence the five year financial strategy 
 

Assumption 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

Budgeted inflation1 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Pay costs increase 2 1% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 

Full Time Equivalent Employees 3 262.7 234.99 223.62 222.62 221.78 221.78 

Pension contribution rate – current 
service cost 4 

17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 17.7% 

Pension contribution rate – lump 
sum element 4 

£670,000 £745,000 £828,000 £921,000 £1,024,000 £1,137,000 

Return on cash investments 0.35% 0.10% 0.30% 0.50% 0.70% 0.90% 

Return on property funds  3.60% 3.60% 3.70% 3.70% 3.80% 3.80% 

Staffing levels 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 99% 

Tax base 5 19,621.7 20,051 20,252 20,454 20,659 20,865 

Fuel cost rises1 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

 
1. 0% used except for utilities/fuel where an average of  5% per annum has been used, reflecting the price risk for these areas 

and also taking into account any gains from both climate change and transformational activity by the Council which are 
likely to lead to reduced consumption. 

 
2. A flat 2% increase has been included from 2022/23 onwards. 
 
3. It is recognised that some future savings could potentially further affect staffing numbers in future years. Until business 

cases are worked-up it is not possible to make further assumptions on any changes.  
 

4. The pension contribution rate is based on a current service cost employer’s contribution rate of 17.7% from 2022/23, plus 
annual monetary contributions in respect of past service.  However a triennial review of the Lincolnshire Pension fund (of 
which the council is a member) is due to take place in 2022/23 

 
5. The tax base used for Council Tax setting is calculated as prescribed by statute, with responsibility for the setting of the 

tax base delegated to the Council’s Section 151 Officer.  The tax base for 2022/23 is 20,051 and for estimation purposes 
has been increased by 1% per annum thereafter. This may increase if the recent number of planning applications deliver 

P
age 27



Page 8 of 32 

 

 

additional Band D equivalent properties above the assumption, and will be reflected in the annual budget figures as 
appropriate. 

P
age 28



Page 9 of 32 

 

 

3. RESOURCES  
 

  Business Rates Retention 
 
3.1 Table 2 details the Council’s retained business rates for 2022/23, based on the provisional local government settlement. 
 
3.2 Under the current part localisation regime, where the Council collects more business rates than the baseline set by Central 

Government, a levy of 50% is applied and paid to Central government.  If an Authority enters a pool this levy is not required 
and in line with previous years Boston has entered into a voluntary pooling arrangement for 2022/23 with Lincolnshire County 
Council and the District Councils in the area (in 2018/19, the Council was part of a successful bid across the county to be a 
pilot for 100% localisation). 

 
3.3 The Government concluded its review of business rates which were published alongside the Chancellor’s budget statement.  

The aim of the review was to reduce the burden of business rates in England, support investment, and make the system more 
responsive.  Following the review the government have confirmed the following:-: 

 

 A freeze on the business rates multiplier for a second year, from 1 April 2022 until 31 March 2023, keeping the multipliers 
at 49.9p and 51.2p  

 Introduce a new temporary business rates relief for eligible retail, hospitality and leisure properties for 2022-23. Eligible 
properties will receive 50% relief, up to a £110,000 per business cap  

 Introduce a 100% improvement relief for business rates. This will provide 12 months relief from higher bills for occupiers 
where eligible improvements to an existing property increase the rateable value. The government will consult on how 
best to implement this relief, which will take effect in 2023 and be reviewed in 2028  

 Introduce from 1 April 2023 until 31 March 2035 targeted business rate exemptions for eligible plant and machinery 
used in onsite renewable energy generation and storage, and a 100% relief for eligible heat networks, to support the 
decarbonisation of non-domestic buildings  

 Increase the frequency of business rates revaluations so that they take place every 3 years instead of every 5 years, 
starting in 2023  

 Provide additional funding to the Valuation Office Agency to support the delivery of the new revaluation cycle.  

 Extend transitional relief for small and medium-sized businesses, and the supporting small business scheme, for 1 year. 
This will restrict bill increases to 15% for small properties (up to a rateable value of £20,000) and 25% for medium 
properties  (up to a rateable value of £100,000), subject to subsidy control limits 

 

P
age 29



Page 10 of 32 

 

 

3.4 The Council remains aware of the issues surrounding business rate appeals and this will be under continuous management 
by officers with the emphasis on making sure there is a reasonable and prudent provision made for successful appeals.  

 

 
Table 2 – Business Rates 
 

  
 

Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Retained Business Rates  7,822 7,333 7,480 7,629 7,782 7,937 

Tariff (5,141) (5,141) (5,456) (5,565) (5,676) (5,790) 

Pre Levy Income 2,681 2,192 2,024 2,064 2,106 2,147 

Renewable Energy (100% retained by Boston BC) 158 208 208 212 216            219 

Less net levy payment to Lincolnshire Pool (61) (177) (181) (184) (188) (192) 

Estimated Business Rates (Deficit) / Surplus  (1,452) (2,913) - - - - 

Equals Net Retained Business Rates Income 1,327 (690) 2,051 2,092 2,134 2,174 

 
3.5 The estimated business rates deficit for 2022/23 in Table 2 is due mainly to the COVID-19 pandemic which has seen 

unprecedented support to business from central government in the form of business rate reliefs, these are funded from monies 
received from central government in 2020/21 and 2021/22 and now released from reserves. Many businesses will not re-
emerge from the periods of lockdown causing a further loss in income, however the full impact of this is still indeterminate.  

 
3.6 The majority of Government support of business ceased in September 2021 with the closure of the majority of its support to 

businesses including the furlough scheme. Compensation for continued Rate Reliefs and income loss are made through 
Section 31 grants and are dealt with in the General Fund 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



Page 11 of 32 

 

 

Council Tax 
 

3.7 Since 2013/14, the Council has revised its exemptions and discounts for Council Tax to recover the reduced funding as part 
of the Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme, and on 17 January 2022 the Council approved its CTS scheme for 2022/23.  

 
3.8 The Council Tax element of the Collection Fund has been calculated based on the 2021/22 scheme, leaving a budget neutral 

position. This will be reviewed throughout the year, and collection rates assessed. The MTFS assumes an increase in the 
Borough’s council tax of 2.50% for 2022/23.  

 
 Table 3 – Council Tax 
   

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
       

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

No. Of 
properties 

Council Tax base (Band D 
equivalents) 

19,621.7 20,051 20,252 20,454 20,659 20,865 

  
     

Council Tax Band D 197.91 202.86 207.81 212.76 217.71 222.66 

Annual Increase £ 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 4.95 

Annual Increase % 2.57 2.50% 2.44% 2.38% 2.33% 2.27% 

Gross Council Tax collected  £3,883,331 £4,067,546 £4,208,466 £4,351,798 £4,497,576 £4,645,835 

In year Surplus / (deficit)  (16,328) 86,654 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL £3,867,003 £4,154,200 £4,208,466 £4,351,798 £4,497,576 £4,645,835 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 31



Page 12 of 32 

 

 

Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Section 31 Grants 
 

 Table 4 – RSG and Section 31 Grants 
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revenue Support Grant 313 323 323 323 323 323 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 89 89 89 89 89 89 

Deficit Compensation Estimate 1,377 0 0 0 0 0 

Settlement Funding Assessment 141 0 0 0 0 0 

Lower Tier Services Grant 115 121 0 0 0 0 

Services Grant 2022/23 0 186 0 0 0 0 

S31 NNDR reliefs including SBRR 600 1,783 1,080 1,080 1,080 1,080 

Total Received 2,635 2,502 1,492 1,492 1,492 1,492 

 
3.9 Following the announcement of four year figures in 2016/17, significant reductions of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) have 

occurred in recent years, and from 2022/23 it has been held at present levels awaiting the outcome of future local government 
finance settlements. As can be seen in the table above if RSG and rural services delivery grant were not received from 2023/24 
onwards this would mean a loss of income of £412k per year. 

 
3.10 As part of the plans for further local retention of business rates, S31 relief grant held at the same level for 2023/24 onwards. 
 
 
3.11 The Government has continued to recognise the additional costs of providing services in rural areas, with affected councils 

receiving amounts of Rural Services Delivery Grant which has been held as the same level over the period to 2026/27. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 32



Page 13 of 32 

 

 

 
New Homes Bonus 
 
3.12 There were new 2022/23 New Homes Bonus (NHB) allocations announced as part of the Local Government Finance 

Settlement for 2022/23 only as far as we are aware. The government has added a year of additional grant. As previously 
announced, the 2021/22 “in year” allocations will not have future years legacy payments nor has the 2022/23 allocation. If the 
scheme was to be continued in its current form next years payment would reflect just the growth in the previous year. 

 
3.13 The values in Table 5 for 2022/23 to 2026/27 are indicative and subject to future consultation and changes to the scheme 

(plus the level of local growth). 
 

Table 5 – New Homes Bonus estimates  
 

  
Boston BC share 

 
Draft Draft Draft Draft Draft 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

TOTAL 690 697 0 0 0 0 

 
 
3.14 The MTFS assumes that NHB payments will be used to support the Council’s revenue budget. This equates to £697k which 

will not be able to be used from 2023/24 onwards as no New Homes Homes Bonus is due to be received after 2022/23. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 33



Page 14 of 32 

 

 

Fees and Charges 
 
3.15 Income from fees and charges is an important source of revenue for the Council, representing almost 15% of the gross income 

budgeted in 2022/23. Charges have a central role to play in service delivery, raising income, controlling access, responding to 
competition, funding investment and affecting behaviour. 

 
3.16 The fees and charges charged in 2021/22 are shown at  
 
https://democracy.boston.gov.uk/documents/s11824/Appendix%204%20-%20Fees%20Charges%202021-22.pdf 
            
 
3.17 Fees and charges are set within the framework of the Corporate Charging Policy, which is attached at Appendix 3 (to be 

included with final budget papers).   
 
3.18 As part of the broader moves to commercialisation across the Council, in line with many other authorities as they respond to 

the increasing challenges of diminishing resources, it is recognised that, in accordance with the Corporate Charging Policy,   
in-year variances to the approved fees and charges on a trial basis, within the approved budget framework, can be made. Any 
such changes will then be reported in the next quarterly monitoring report.  

 
3.19 Appendix 4 shows the proposed fees and charges to be charged from 1 April 2022. Once these changes have been approved 

the full list of Council fees and charges applicable for 2022/23 will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
3.20 The following table shows the main income budgets from fees and charges for Boston, before any consideration of possible 

increases beyond 2022/23 as part of balancing net budget and resources in those years.  At this time assumptions for the 
majority of these areas are that income levels will not increase within the period of the MTFS, and this will be revisited as part 
of the annual Budget and Strategy refresh. Given the scale of savings required in the coming years, it is likely that future years 
will see rises in some fee areas. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34



Page 15 of 32 

 

 

 
 
Table 6 – Fees and charges income budgets 
 
 

Budget Area 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Leisure income 918 695 832 879 879 879 

Building control 170 170 170 170 170 170 

Licensing 131 131 131 131 131 131 

Land charges 78 78 64 64 64 64 

Bereavement 896 898 925 951 973 997 

Garden Waste 574 574 584 591 591 591 

Trade waste 314 355 366 377 388 400 

Planning fees 566 633 645 652 655 655 

Parking 1,019 921 971 971 971 971 

Markets 80 80 80 80 80 80 

Other small areas 206 219 212 207 210 211 

TOTAL FEE INCOME 4,952 4,753 4,979 5,073 5,111 5,149 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



Page 16 of 32 

 

 

 
Other Income 

 
3.21 The Council also receives a number of other forms of income, and these are shown in the following table: 
 
Table 7 – Other Income 
 

  2021/22* 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Housing benefit subsidy 13,050 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 

Council tax and Housing benefit administration 
grant 304 

 
285 

 
282 

 
282 

 
282 

 
282 

Specific government grants 179 531 133 132 131 131 

Housing benefit overpayments 120 120 120 120 120 120 

Court income 251 251 251 251 251 251 

Rental income 593 696 696 695 695 695 

NNDR admin grant 92 92 92 92 92 92 

Other Contributions (from external bodies for 
sharing of services and posts) 1,172 

 
1,332 

 
1,283 

 
1,315 

 
1,346 

 
1,378 

Other Income 996 888 860 1,005 980 878 

Total Other Income 16,757 15,933 15,455 15,630     15,635 15,565 

 
 
* Housing benefit subsidy has reduced following the initial introduction of Universal Credit locally. Future phases have not been 
factored into budgets as their timing and impact are uncertain. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 36



Page 17 of 32 

 

 

 
External Funding opportunities 
 
3.22 With the continuing reduction in resources available to the Council it will be important to seek and secure funds from external 

sources wherever possible, in accordance with the Council’s priorities.  
 
Summary  
 

Table 8 – All sources of income 
 

Budget Area 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Business rates (Table 2) 1,326 (690) 2,051 2,092 2,134 2,174 

Revenue Support Grant (Table 4) 313 323 323 323 323 323 

Deficit Compensation Estimate 1,377 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Grants  945 2,179 1,169 1,169 1,169 1,169 

New Homes Bonus (Table 5) 690 697 0 0 0 0 

Total Government Resources 4,651 2,509 3,543 3,584 3,626 3,666 

Council tax – Boston BC precept, including 
Collection Fund adjustment (Table 3) 3,867 4,154 4,208 4,352 4,498 4,646 

BTAC Special Area Expense 716 740 762 784 808 832 

Parish Councils’ Precepts 459 473 478 483 488 493 

Fees & charges (Table 6) 4,953 4,753 4,979 5,073 5,111 5,149 

Other income (Table 7) 16,757 15,933 15,455 15,630     15,635 15,565 

Return on Cash Investments 39 51 70 88 111 115 

Return on Property Funds 977 909 923 938 952 952 

Contribution from Reserves 1,922 5,469 1,296 212 118 118 

Gross budgeted income 34,341 34,991 31,714 31,143 31,347 31,536 

 
 
 
 

P
age 37



Page 18 of 32 

 

 

 
4. 2020/21 SPENDING PLANS 

 
4.1 The following table shows the estimates by type of expenditure/income split over the CIPFA standard classification for the next 

five years. The paragraphs below the table provide information on budget variances between years. Details of the overall 
position are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. 

 
 Table 9 – Estimates by expenditure/income  
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Employees 9,947 9,648 9,650 9,935 10,247 10,337 

Premises 1,310 1,400 1,420 1,440 1,464 1,477 

Transport 663 335 350 365 382 399 

Supplies and Services 3,897 6,756 6,343 6,461 6,544 6,189 

Third Party Payments 157 159 161 163 109 109 

Drainage Board Levies  2,009 2,175 2,218 2,263 2,308 2,354 

Parish Councils’ Precepts 459 473 478 483 488 493 

Transfer Payments 13,050 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 11,738 

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital 1,088 1,888 1,176 194 100 100 

Interest Payable on Borrowing 494 494 494 494 494 494 

Minimum Revenue Provision 15 15 15 15 15 15 

Contribution to Reserves 1,152 192 451 447 446 444 

PSPS Decision Financial Cost/(Savings) 100 - - - - - 

Savings Target - (282) (2,780) (2,855) (2,988) (2,613) 

Gross Expenditure 34,341 34,991 31,714 31,143 31,347 31,536 

 
4.2 All staffing costs have been prepared in accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy as detailed in Appendix 7.  The pension 

contribution rate is based on a current service cost employer’s contribution rate of 17.7% from 2022/23, plus annual monetary 
contributions in respect of past service.  However a triennial review of the Lincolnshire Pension fund (of which the council is a 
member) is due to take place in 2022/23 

 
 

P
age 38



Page 19 of 32 

 

 

4.3 Internal Drainage Board (IDB) increases, in total average 8% for 2022/23. Post 2022/23 increases have been estimated at this 
time, with an increase of 2% p.a. assumed. At a time of significant cuts and having to find significant savings annually, the 
Council is liaising with the local Internal Drainage Boards to work towards limiting future increases where possible.  

 
4.4 Capital financing and direct revenue financing is mainly for capital expenditure funded from reserve contributions. 
 
4.5 The contribution to reserves is mainly for contributions to the capital reserve. The overall contribution is anticipated to reduce 

significantly across the MTFS period due to the New Homes Bonus scheme ending.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 39



Page 20 of 32 

 

 

5. COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENT 
 
5.1 Outline estimates through to 2026/27 are shown at Appendices 1 and 2. In compiling these figures we have used the 

assumptions set out in Section 2 of this report and made specific adjustments to service budgets as and where Service 
Managers have advised of changes over the medium term. These forward estimates allow for annual increases of £4.95 at 
Band D from 2022/23 onwards for Council Tax, but are subject to risks surrounding the Secretary of State’s annual referendum 
limits.  These assumptions are for planning purposes only and are likely to change.  

 
Table 10 – Council Tax Requirement  
 

  2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Net Expenditure 9,693 7,876 8,991 9,203 9,420 9,637 

Retained Business Rates (1,326) 690 (2,051) (2,092) (2,134) (2,174) 

Revenue Support Grant (313) (323) (323) (323) (323) (323) 

New Homes Bonus  (690) (697) - - - - 

Parish Councils’ Precepts (459) (473) (478) (483) (488) (493) 

Other Grants (2,322) (2,179) (1,169) (1,169) (1,169) (1,169) 

Special Expenses  (716) (740) (762) (784) (808) (832) 

Boston BC Council Tax Requirement 3,867 4,154 4,208 4,352 4,498 4,646 

 
5.2 The forward estimates demonstrate that achieving a balanced position annually will require significant ongoing savings. Further 

information on efficiencies and economies is provided in section 9 of this report. 
 

5.3 Members will recall that as part of the Strategic Alliance a savings target had been built into the MTFS. Following a number of 
initiatives savings of circa £500,000 have now been achieved in 2021/22, prior to the creation of the new SELCP. With this 
change in partnership arrangements a new delivery plan has been developed for the forthcoming year 2022/23 and future 
years in which it sets out the significant areas of opportunity. In addition and to not lose focus on 2021/22 we are also now 
capturing direct and indirect savings for the new partnership through regular reviews and this work will be reported on as part 
of the quarterly budget monitoring and at year end.  
 

 

P
age 40



Page 21 of 32 

 

 

6. OTHER BUDGET ISSUES 
 
6.1 In order to meet its obligations, equality impact assessments will be carried out when the nature of proposed changes to 

services and the potential mitigation (if any) is clear, so that the implications of decisions are fully understood as they affect 
specific groups and communities. These have been, and will continue to be, regularly undertaken and considered as part of 
the decision making process.  

 
6.2 Cabinet members are also asked to note the budget proposals for the Boston Town Area Committee are yet to be discussed. 

These are due to be discussed during January 2022 and so the current value is that which was included in the previous MTFS.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



Page 22 of 32 

 

 

7. RESERVES  
 
7.1 To comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council must undertake a review of the level of 

reserves as part of annual budget preparation. A review of the current projection for reserves has been undertaken, including 
a review of current and future risks the Council might face. This has included an assessment of risk registers, pressures upon 
services, inflation and interest rates and any underwriting arrangements. The proposed budget has been developed on the 
basis of not requiring any long term support from reserves.   

 
General Balances 
 

7.2 The General Fund balance is estimated to stand at £2.0m for the next five years, which the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
believes to be prudent for the Council at this time. 

 
Specific Reserves 

 
7.3 Specific reserves are set up to provide funds for known future commitments or provide resources for unexpected events. The 

projected closing balance on specific reserves over the next five years is given below in table 11. Given the risks and 
uncertainties facing both the local and national economy the Council is committed to retaining robust levels of reserves, whilst 
ensuring resources are available to enable efficient service delivery.  

 
7.4 The projected increase in the Capital Reserve is as a direct consequence of the expectation that the Council’s capital resources 

will diminish in the coming years, and if it is to protect services and the value of its assets, the Council will need to ensure that 
funds are available to support core service priorities, as well as seeking external sources wherever possible. 

 
7.5 The creation of the Mitigation Reserve occurred following the approval of capital spend on Property Fund holdings, with the 

recognition that the Council needs to ensure that future revenue budgets are protected, if necessary. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 42



Page 23 of 32 

 

 

 
Table 11 – Specific Reserves  

 
Reserve Estimated 

Balance 
31.03.22 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.23 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.24 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.25 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.26 

£’000 

Balance 
31.03.27 

£’000 

Capital Funding  (5,625) (3,842) (3,014) (3,243) (3.472) (3,702) 

Transformation  (1,046) (1,048) (1,048) (1,048) (1,048) (1,048) 

ICT  (226) (156) (136) (42) (42) (42) 

Repairs and Renewals  (752) (787) (823) (858) (893) (928) 

Housing (1,473) (1,424) (1,391) (1,456) (1,521) (1,583) 

Funding Volatility Reserve (4,950) (2,038) (2,038) (2,038) (2,038) (2,038) 

Insurance (254) (254) (254) (254) (254) (254) 

Property Fund Mitigation 
Reserve 

(1,116) (1,116) (1,116) (1,116) (1,116) 
 

(1,116) 
 

Covid 19 (1,448) (948) (948) (948) (948) (948) 

Total (16,890) (11,613) (10,768) (11,003) (11,332) (11,659) 

 
7.6 Table 11 above outline the projected position on reserves over the next five years. This shows the name of each specific 

reserve, the balance as at the 1 April for each year of the financial strategy, and the movements in capital and revenue.  
 
7.7 The Covid 19 reserve has been set aside to mitigate effects on the revenue budget from the pandemic. It is assumed that 

£500k will be used from this reserve in 2022/23 to help to smooth reduced income expected in the short term before income 
levels return to a more normal level from 2023/24 onwards. This will be reviewed when drafting the next MTFS as the full 
effects of the pandemic on income levels are better understood. 

 
7.8 There are a number of potential capital commitments and risks such as ongoing investment in assets and energy efficiency 

measures, the majority of which have not been included in the capital programme at this point. A condition survey of the 
Council’s assets will be undertaken during 2021/22 to inform future capital spend. Proposals will be brought forward annually 
as schemes are worked up.  

 

P
age 43



Page 24 of 32 

 

 

7.9  The Government has been critical of Councils across the country and their levels of reserves. However, given strategic risks, 
such as business rate appeals and flooding, and uncertainties in respect of the amount of resources to meet future spending 
plans, we believe that Boston Borough Council’s proposed level of reserves is appropriate. 

P
age 44



Page 25 of 32 

 

 

8. CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Under the Gunning Principles, the following points are the golden rules of consultation: 

 Proposals being consulted upon must be at a formative stage; 

 Proposals must contain enough information for the respondent to provide intelligent consideration; 

 Must give adequate time for a response; 

 Responses must be conscientiously taken into account. 
 
8.2 Using these principles, the budget consultation process for the 2022/23 budget comprises a number of elements. It will be  

published on the Council’s website for consultation by all stakeholders, including the local business community. 
 
8.3 In addition to this we consult through a number of Member forums including Cabinet and Scrutiny; and on the governance 

aspects of its preparation through the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
8.4 Following the budget consultation process, comments received through the Member forums, preceptors and the public 

exercise will be taken into account in preparing and recommending the proposed budget for Cabinet review and formal Council 
approval on 23 February and 28 February 2022 respectively. 

 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 45



Page 26 of 32 

 

 

9. SAVINGS TARGETS 
 

9.1 The projected budgets recognise an increasingly challenging and uncertain position through the five year period of our financial 
strategy. A key factor is that the Local Government Finance Act 2012 and future finance reviews demand a significant 
transformation in the way public services are both paid for and provided, with an emphasis on business and housing growth 
to both improve economic development and maximise funding to the Council to help offset ongoing reductions in overall 
resources.  

 
9.2 Based upon current budget assumptions the value of efficiency savings required to set a balanced budget for the next five 

years are as follows: 
 

 
Table 12 – Savings Targets  
 

 2022/23* 
£000 

2023/24* 
£000 

2024/25* 
£000 

2025/26* 
£000 

2026/27* 
£000 

Budget Savings Requirement (£’000) – annual 282 2,780 2,855 2,988 2,613 

 
 
 
9.3 The ongoing delivery of a significant level of savings is recognised as a key challenge to the Council that will require both 

political and cultural direction to ensure it is met. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 46



Page 27 of 32 

 

 

10. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS’ PARTNERSHIP PLANS  

  

10.1 As we think of 2023/24 there is great uncertainty with the central funding which could be allocated to Boston. This is driven 
by several financial matters which remain unresolved such as the implications of the Fairer Funding Review, Business Rates 
baseline reset and a review of the Business Rates retention scheme. It should therefore be noted the Councils assumptions 
on future budget gaps whilst prudent could well be understated. 
 

10.2.1 The Council is taking a positive response to this uncertainty by seeking to influence those matters raised above through both 
engagement and lobbying to ensure a fair deal is delivered for rural communities. 

 
10.2.2 As we look forward into 2022/23 Cabinet will be promoting projects which aim to drive commercial opportunities, place the 

customer at the centre of everything we do and achieve as much as is possible through greater collaboration through the 
South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. Some of these key projects to be developed during 2022/23 include; 

 

 Realising efficiencies working together with East Lindsey District Council and South Holland District Council through 

the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership 

 Investment in infrastructure and facilities through the Towns Fund 

 A Council service modernisation programme through investment with PSPS and also in ICT 

 Investment in the Waste service 

 Building the case for investment in infrastructure 

 Empowering communities in the way services are provided 

 Commercialisation of services 

 Addressing Deprivation in the area 

 Tackling Climate Change through the Green Homes Initiative 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 47



Page 28 of 32 

 

 

 
 
 
11. RISK AND SENSITIVITY 
 
 
11.1 The Council is required to set a budget, which is a realistic statement of its estimated Income and Expenditure for the coming 

year based upon information currently available to it. It has a duty to take into account the demand for its services, and the 
effect upon council taxpayers of meeting those demands at varying levels of service. I have examined the budget proposals 
contained in this report, and believe that whilst the spending and service delivery proposals contained within are tighter than 
we have previously set, they are nevertheless achievable and deliverable given good management practices and sound 
financial and performance monitoring. I am satisfied that the requisite management processes exist within the Council to 
deliver this budget, and to identify and deal with any problems which may unexpectedly arise throughout the year.  We fully 
expect there to be a need to review these budgets throughout the coming financial year in order that we can respond to as yet 
undefined financial risks.  As an organisation we recognise a period of budgetary turbulence and we will use our financial 
management processes to identify options that will allow us to adjust our budgetary position as and when required. Formal 
quarterly budget monitoring updates are presented to members throughout the year. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



Page 29 of 32 

 

 

 
11.2 Table 13 – Key Risks  

  

Risk Likelihood Impact Action 

Ongoing and continued COVID-19 
Response 

High High Regular financial monitoring, use of reserves, 
promoting growth plans and supporting the 
community 

Drainage Board Levy Increases High High Lobbying Government 

Contract Cost volatility High High To seek to pre-purchase were necessary 

Fluctuation in business rates High High Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

Lack of funding to partners causing 
displacement of service demand 

High High Engagement and realism 

Inadequate capital resources to finance 
future desired plans 

High High Proportionate spending and sale of surplus assets 

Central Government policy changes High High Engagement in consultation and policy creation 

Fairer Funding and Business Rate 
reset/changes 

High High To lobby as required 

VAT – partial exemption High High Close forecasting VAT partial exemption position 

Reductions in NHB impacting on future 
plans 

High High Lobbying and service transformation 

Reduction in Investment Values Medium Medium Regular Monitoring, allocation of specific Reserve 

Uncertainty re: Brexit impact Medium Medium Growth plans and accurate monitoring 

A poor settlement for rural councils Medium High Lobbying as a special interest group 

Fee income volatility Medium Medium Early monitoring of deviations 

Increased demand for services Medium Medium A robust performance management framework 

Failure to deliver the required savings  Low High Effective programme and project management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 49



Page 30 of 32 

 

 

 
12.  CAPITAL PROGRAMME  

 
12.1 In drawing together the proposed capital programme we have taken a five year view from 2022/23 to 2026/27, to run alongside 

our revenue plans. This is sensible and encourages a link between revenue and capital spending decisions. 
 
12.2 It is important to emphasise that no scheme will appear on the Capital Programme until the criteria set out in the capital strategy 

have been met and agreed by committees of the Council.  Members may well be aware of several potential projects which are 
not included in the proposed five year capital programme. This is not to say that they will not happen but that they will not be 
included until an affordable business case is approved and more information is available. We will have a programme which is 
likely to have further schemes added once aspirations are turned into robust projects. The decisions that are taken ultimately 
have to be affordable, prudent and sustainable for the local community. 

 
12.3 The future for capital investment, funded from both the Council’s resources and external resources, will be dependent on 

decisions taken as part of each year’s budget process. Our capital resources have been substantially eroded over time and 
we aim to take money from revenue to ensure that statutory commitments can continue to be met. This will demand a greater 
role for the Council’s Asset Management Plan to ensure that future liabilities are reduced and that capital receipts are 
maximised.  

 
12.4 The proposed capital programme (including details of anticipated slippage in the 2021/22 capital programme) for 2022/23 to 

2026/27 is shown in table 14 along with how the programme will be financed. It should be noted that some risk exists with 
capping the finance available for Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) works as this is a statutory provision dictated by law based 
on need rather than the ability of the Council to provide the funds to carry out the works, and as such it is subject to ongoing 
review.   

  
12.5 Following the publication of CIPFA’s review and MHCLG guidance on the Prudential System (which guides and regulates 

councils’ capital and investment strategies), during 2018/19 the Council made use of external borrowing to support the 
Council’s long term Capital Strategy, by purchasing capital Property Fund units. The intention is to bring a number of benefits 
to the Council over the medium to long term, including yield, growth in future capital resources, statutory service resilience and 
historically low interest rate finance. This is subject to regular monitoring and is primarily overseen by the Audit and Governance 
Committee.  

 
12.7 In addition, Boston was chosen by the Government as one of 101 towns and received funding to support growth initiatives for 

the town over the coming years. As projects are worked up by the Town Board and approved by the Government, the Council’s 
capital programme will be amended accordingly. 

P
age 50



Page 31 of 32 

 

 

 
12.8 The proposed capital programme is affordable, meets the Council’s obligations and provides a basis for growth.  
 
Table 14 – Capital Programme  
 

 Capital Programme £’000 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Disabled Facilities Grants 280 280 280 280 280 

  2.  Vehicle Replacement Programme       

              Grounds Maintenance Mowers 80 - - - - 
              Ford Transit Vans 290, 300 & 1.5tdci  
              Courier 60 - - - - 

              Ford Ranger 2.5 25 - - - - 

              Ford Transit Tipper Vans 350 50 56 - - - 

  3.  Town Centre Heritage Scheme 42 - - - - 

  4.  Information Technology Refresh 170 120 194 100 100 

  5.  Towns Fund – Leisure 2,935 1,990 - - - 

  6.  Towns Fund – Mayflower 720 8,490 3,307 - - 
  7.  Towns Fund – Centre for Food & Fresh Produce 
Logistics 453 388 - - - 
  9.  Towns Fund – Blenkin Memorial Hall 99 - - - - 
10.  Towns Fund – Healing the High Street 283 2,573 1,356 121 - 

11.  Towns Fund – Boston Station 1,665 990 - - - 

Totals 6,862 14,887 5,137 501 380 

 

Capital Financing £’000  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 

1. Capital Grants and Contributions  4,974 13,711 4,943 401 280 

2. Capital Reserve  1,718 1,156 100 100 100 

3. IT Reserve  170 20 94 - - 

  4.  Repairs and Renewal Reserve  - - - - - 

  5.  Housing Reserve  - - - - - 

Totals  6,862 14,887 5,137 501 380 

P
age 51



Page 32 of 32 

 

 

 
13. OPTIONS 

 
13.1 Given the likely outlook for future resource levels, the Council needs to focus strategically over the next five years, and consider 

to what extent they wish to maintain existing services, how services might be prioritised, and to develop proposals on how 
future budgetary shortfalls might be addressed.  As in previous years, the Cabinet are being encouraged to work with all 
Members (and stakeholders generally) as critical friends to assist in the development of future years’ budgets. 

 
14. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
14.1 To comply with the budgetary and policy framework. 
 
 
15. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
15.1 To review the proposed budget and associated documents and feedback to Cabinet prior to the Final Budget approval. 
 
 

P
age 52



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2022-23 TO 2026-27 APPENDIX 1
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE BY PORTFOLIO HOLDER

2022/2023
ESTIMATE £

2023/2024
ESTIMATE £

2024/2025
ESTIMATE £

2025/2026
ESTIMATE £

2026/2027
ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION
Housing and Communities 853,120 726,870 728,990 753,380 763,790
Heritage 92,670 88,850 64,510 64,600 53,930
Town Centre 899,280 926,750 953,700 982,150 985,330
Environmental 4,370,590 4,445,210 4,554,140 4,701,960 4,771,420
Finance and Commerical 1,192,330 1,018,830 1,065,840 1,115,280 958,720
Leader 2,511,470 2,543,310 2,606,410 2,656,560 2,605,660
Economic Development & Planning 1,598,610 1,644,620 1,594,000 1,630,090 1,562,910
BTAC - Included in Town Centre 0 0 0 0 0
Efficiencies Required (281,559) (2,779,524) (2,855,315) (2,987,708) (2,612,873)

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 11,236,511 8,614,916 8,712,275 8,916,312 9,088,887

Drainage Board Precepts 2,174,800 2,218,300 2,262,700 2,307,900 2,354,100
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 13,884,311 11,311,216 11,457,975 11,712,212 11,935,987
Appropriations
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 1,888,000 1,176,000 194,000 100,000 100,000
Interest on borrowing 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640
Repayment of loan principle / MRP 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Capital Charges contra entry (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640)
Return on Cash Investments (50,700) (69,500) (87,600) 0 (110,700) (115,300)
Return on Property Funds (909,000) (923,000) (938,000) 0 (952,000) (952,000)
Contributions To / (From) Reserves (5,277,852) (844,671) 235,180 328,306 326,960

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

FINANCING
Retained Business Rates 7,332,980 7,479,640 7,629,233 7,781,818 7,937,454
Tariff (5,140,710) (5,455,980) (5,565,100) (5,676,400) (5,789,928)
RSG 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894
Levy to Pool (177,070) (180,610) (184,220) (187,900) (191,658)
NNDR Surplus / (Deficit) (2,912,500) 0 0 0 0
NNDR Renewables 208,285 208,285 212,000 216,000 219,000
New Homes Bonus 697,400 0 0 0 0
Special Area Expense 739,660 761,890 784,490 808,370 831,590
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000
Specific Grants 2,178,620 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460
Council Tax surplus 86,654 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Precept 4,067,546 4,208,466 4,351,798 4,497,576 4,645,835

FUNDING 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

NET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

09/02/2022 12:32
Z:\COMMITTEE SERVICES\Scrutiny\2 O&S Corporate and Community\2021-22\(7) 17th February 2022\(1b) Copy of Appendix 1 - Summary

by Portfolio 2022-23 Summary by PFH Apx 1
Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2022-23 TO 2026-27 APPENDIX 2
SUMMARY OF NET REVENUE EXPENDITURE

2022/2023
ESTIMATE £

2023/2024
ESTIMATE £

2024/2025
ESTIMATE £

2025/2026
ESTIMATE £

2026/2027
ESTIMATE £

DESCRIPTION
Corporate 3,058,870 3,218,280 3,159,550 3,242,550 3,161,480
Finance 1,410,100 1,280,410 1,310,590 1,336,290 1,174,220
Wellbeing and Community Leadership 1,508,110 1,370,430 1,395,040 1,440,590 1,398,070
Economic Growth 190,610 199,840 207,630 216,430 220,350
Governance 91,480 94,860 97,400 99,990 101,620
General Fund Assets -29,910 -88,940 -112,910 -112,760 -122,960
Leisure and Culture 1,533,430 1,470,880 1,477,970 1,533,090 1,527,920
Neighbourhoods 2,928,220 3,042,550 3,155,220 3,264,470 3,336,800
Planning & Strategic Infastructure 270,210 173,190 209,120 185,000 187,040
Regulatory 556,950 632,940 667,980 698,370 717,220
Efficiencies Required -281,559 -2,779,524 -2,855,315 -2,987,708 -2,612,873

NET SERVICE EXPENDITURE 11,236,511 8,614,916 8,712,275 8,916,312 9,088,887

Drainage Board Precepts 2,174,800 2,218,300 2,262,700 2,307,900 2,354,100
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000

TOTAL REQUIREMENT 13,884,311 11,311,216 11,457,975 11,712,212 11,935,987
Appropriations
Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Expenditure 1,888,000 1,176,000 194,000 100,000 100,000
Interest on borrowing 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640 493,640
Repayment of loan principle / MRP 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Capital Charges contra entry (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640) (2,166,640)
Return on Cash Investments (50,700) (69,500) (87,600) (110,700) (115,300)
Return on Property Funds (909,000) (923,000) (938,000) (952,000) (952,000)
Contributions To / (From) Reserves (5,277,852) (844,671) 235,180 328,306 326,960

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

FINANCING
Retained Business Rates 7,332,980 7,479,640 7,629,233 7,781,818 7,937,454
Tariff (5,140,710) (5,455,980) (5,565,100) (5,676,400) (5,789,928)
Revenue Support Grant (RSG) 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894 322,894
Net Levy to Pool (177,070) (180,610) (184,220) (187,900) (191,658)
NNDR surplus / (deficit) (2,912,500) 0 0 0 0
NNDR Renewables 208,285 208,285 212,000 216,000 219,000
Levy Account Surplus - Settlement Data 0 0 0 0 0
New Homes Bonus 697,400 0 0 0 0
Special Area Expense (BTAC) 739,660 761,890 784,490 808,370 831,590
Parish Council Precepts 473,000 478,000 483,000 488,000 493,000
Specific Grants 2,178,620 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460 1,169,460
Council Tax surplus/(deficit) 86,654 0 0 0 0
Council Tax Precept 4,067,546 4,208,466 4,351,798 4,497,576 4,645,835

Funding 7,876,759 8,992,045 9,203,555 9,419,818 9,637,647

NET (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT 0 0 0 0 0

09/02/2022 12:33
Z:\COMMITTEE SERVICES\Scrutiny\2 O&S Corporate and Community\2021-22\(7) 17th February 2022\(1c) Copy of Appendix 2 - Summary by Service Area 2022-23 Budget

Book Summary 22-23 Apx 2
Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
CORPORATE CHARGING POLICY 2022/23

POLICY AIM

The aim of this policy is to provide a corporate framework for the setting of fees
and charges for the services provided by Boston Borough Council. The policy
shows the connection between charging for services and the council’s
objectives and aims to secure the delivery of services efficiently, effectively and
at affordable levels; it also aims to strengthen financial management.

As the overall resources available to the Council are diminishing, it is important
to ensure that the charging policy clearly sets out the ways that fees and
charges will contribute to the continuation of services for residents, businesses
and other consumers.

POLICY STATEMENT
LIC STATEMENT
· The Policy applies to all those fees and charges which the Council has

discretion to set, regardless of whether the levels are approved by the
Cabinet or any alternative Council reporting arrangement (for example
Licensing Committee). Services where charges are decided externally
will be set in line with the relevant national legal framework and will
automatically be changed to reflect the latest position.

· We will identify the full costs of delivering services to make clear the level
of subsidy the Council is providing.

· We will operate an effective and efficient collection system. The methods
for paying charges will be made clear and the procedures for recovering
fees will be governed by established Debt Recovery Procedures. The
Council reserves the right to levy charges for the late payment of
invoices.

· Reasonable notice will be given to service users before any new charge
is implemented. Reasonable notice is defined as one calendar month.

· The effects any new charge has on service usage and income must be
closely monitored over the first 12 months by the service manager.

· We will invest receipts from fees and charges in the improvement of the
service, subject to statutory requirements and the wider corporate
objectives of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. A Service Manager
may propose to invest receipts from fees and charges and will prepare
a report to the Corporate Management Team identifying their full
requirements for use of additional income in their service area.

Page 57



Appendix 3

· All discretionary fees and charges will be set in line with the approved
charging policy for that service and should fall into one of the categories
in the following table.

Charging Strategy Objective
Commercial
charges

The council aims to cover the cost of providing the
service and make a surplus

Full Cost
Recovery

The council aims to recover the costs of providing
this service from those who use it

Subsidised The council wishes users of the service to make a
contribution to the costs of providing it. This might be
to meet a service objective or to allow competition
with other providers

Free The Council chooses to make the service available at
no charge to meet a service objective

Statutory Charges are determined in line with legal
requirements.

· Fees and charges will be regularly reviewed within the Council’s financial
planning process, any variations outside of this will need formal approval
by the Cabinet or Committee as appropriate. Service Managers will
complete the corporate template for the review of fees and charges, these
will form the bases for reports to the Cabinet or relevant committee, as
part of the annual review of fees and charges.

· Increases in fees and charges will, each year, be generally in line with the
level of inflation assumed in the budget process, subject to consideration
of the specific issues in relation to each service. All changes will be agreed
as part of the overall budget setting process.

· Wherever possible charges will be collected either in advance or at the
point of service delivery. Where charges are to be collected after service
delivery has started, invoices will be raised within 5 working days, and as
necessary appropriate recovery procedures followed.

· The policy requires a comprehensive schedule of all fees and charges to
be set up. Each Service Manager will maintain a schedule of fees and
charges levied for their areas of responsibility. This schedule will be in a
corporate format and should include, but identify separately, those
charges that are nationally set. The format will be determined by the
Accountancy Manager. There may be instances where, for commercial
reasons, specific fees are not quoted on the schedule. Fees for these
services will be on a “price on application” basis.

Page 58



Appendix 3

· The Customer Services Manager will be able to refer to all fees and
charges and these will be made available on the Authority’s website.

· Charges should be easy to understand.

· Existing policies and procedures should be taken into account when
setting fees and charges.

· Setting of fees and charges should be made in accordance with the current
value added tax regulations. Where rates of VAT increase then fees and
charges will automatically be adjusted upwards. Advice will be provided
by the Accountancy team.

· As a general policy no concession is to be given from the charge set.
However, it is open to service managers to present a case to the Cabinet
arguing that a concession is appropriate for a particular group or that a
concession would assist the achievement of the Council’s Corporate
Objectives.

· In accordance with business need fees and charges can be amended as
agreed by the respective Portfolio Holder, Corporate Management Team
member, Head of Service and the Section 151 Officer (or Deputy Section
151 Officer) in exceptional circumstances and reported to Cabinet
retrospectively.

· I
IMPLEMENTATION

IM
Who is responsible?

Overall responsibility is with the PSPS Financial Services Team and day-to-
day operational responsibility with Service Managers.

Complaints procedure

If any member of the public believes that the Council has acted in a way that
is not in line with this policy the Council’s Formal Complaints Procedure may
be followed.

Monitoring and review

The PSPS Financial Services Team will review the implementation of this
policy and undertake a triennial review of the policy.

Service Team Plans

All service team plans will be consistent with the principles within this policy.

Page 59



Appendix 3

Value for Money

The Council continually reviews its costs and charges to ensure that Value for
Money is being delivered, and in determining next year’s fees and charges,
annual reviews will seek to challenge subsidies, determine the value placed on
the service and how much people are willing to pay. They will also identify any
new charges for services.

MONITORING
ONITORING
The policy will be monitored in the following ways:

MONITORING ACTIVITY PERSON RESPONSIBLE
Data collection Service Managers
Review of policy PSPS Financial Services Team
External communication PSPS Customer Services Manager
ONSULTAON
CONSULTATION

Corporate Management Team and Cabinet were consulted on a draft version
of the strategy before full implementation. Changes were made to the policy
reflecting the outcomes of the consultation.
POLICY APPROVAL

Page 60



APPENDIX 4BOSTON & FOSDYKE CEMETERIES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Burial Fee - Adult  (Resident of the Borough) 902.00 0.00 902.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Adult  (Non resident within 5 years) 1,804.00 0.00 1,804.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child 6 - 17 years 248.00 -248.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child 1 month - 5 years 99.00 -99.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Child up to 1 month 35.00 -35.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT
Burial Fee - Non Viable Foetus or Baby Tissues resulting
from post mortem 35.00 -37.00 -2.00 Non business - no VAT
Excavation of grave space in preparation for construction
of brick vault:
Brick Vault : Single POA POA Non business - no VAT
                      Double POA POA Non business - no VAT
                      Others (pro rata) POA POA
Re-opening of grave for interment in existing vault
(excavation & re-filling) 902.00 0.00 902.00 Non business - no VAT
Cremated remains placed in coffin for interment 80.00 2.00 82.00 Non business - no VAT
Interment (beneath surface) or exhumation of cremated
remains in Cemetery 154.00 4.00 158.00 Non business - no VAT
Double interment of cremated remains (one excavation, 2
caskets or both in same casket) 231.00 6.00 237.00 Non business - no VAT
Scatter of Cremated Remains in cemetery (unwitnessed) 67.00 0.00 67.00 Non business - no VAT
Officer attendance at witnessed scattering or interment of
ashes - (by appointment only) 29.00 1.00 30.00 Non business - no VAT
Exhumation of coffined body from cemetery POA POA Standard rate
Fees and Charges
Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial
permit) - single space (resident of Borough) 1,200.00 20.00 1,220.00 Non business - no VAT
Purchase of Exclusive Right of burial (including memorial
permit) - single space (non resident) 2,400.00 40.00 2,440.00 non business - no VAT
Purchase of Exclusive Right of Burial for a cremated
remains plot at Fosdyke Cemetery 560.00 17.00 577.00 Non business - no VAT
Transfer of grave ownership fee 37.00 1.00 38.00 non business - no VAT
Administration fee for surrender of Exclusive Right of
Burial or rectification to change to alternative grave space 60.00 2.00 62.00 Non business - no VAT
Permit for vase (unpurchased graves) 80.00 2.00 82.00 Non business - no VAT
Exclusive right of burial for child grave including memorial
permit 75.00 -77.00 -2.00 Non business - no VAT
Permit for additional inscription on existing memorial 47.00 2.00 49.00 Non business - no VAT
Grave maintenance - Annual contract
With Planting - Single 114.00 3.00 117.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Double 228.00 6.00 234.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Triple 342.00 9.00 351.00 Standard rate
With Planting - Quadruple 456.00 12.00 468.00 Standard rate
Family History Searches:
To locate names in the indexes & registers through to
identification of the grave on site -
per grave 2.50 0.50 3.00 Standard rate
Non-genealogical searches or names not found in indexes no charge no charge

Page 61



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Memorial Price List
Book of Remembrance
2 Line Inscription 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
5 Line Inscription 122.00 3.00 125.00 Standard rate
8 Line Inscription 154.00 5.00 159.00 Standard rate
Illustration, Badge, Coat of Arms etc (to accompany 5 & 8 line entries only) 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 2 line entry 83.00 2.00 85.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 5 line entry 122.00 3.00 125.00 Standard rate
Miniature Book of Remembrance 8 line entry 154.00 5.00 159.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 2 line entry 31.00 0.00 31.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 5 line entry 36.00 0.00 36.00 Standard rate
Memorial card - 8 line entry 42.00 0.00 42.00 Standard rate
Each additional line in existing Miniature Book 21.00 0.00 21.00 Standard rate
Correction or addition to Book of Remembrance entry (client error) 21.00 0.00 21.00 Standard rate
Fixed Term Memorials

Renewal of dedication for existing individual roses, trees & shrubs - per annum 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Each 5 year dedication of one granite Bench plaque (one third share, 3
plaques per granite bench), bench remains the property of the Council 413.00 12.00 425.00 Standard rate
Each 5 year dedication of plaque on wooden bench (one plaque per bench
only), includes maintenance of bench which remains the property of the 618.00 18.00 636.00 Standard rate
Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque- initial set up plus first year of
dedication 89.00 3.00 92.00 Standard rate

Inscribed granite wall plaque or tower plaque - per each year of dedication 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Single Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 52.00 2.00 54.00 Standard rate
Leather Recordia Panel (per year-2nd year onwards), single or double 26.00 1.00 27.00 Standard rate
Double Leather Recordia Panel in Chapel of Remembrance (1st yr) 104.00 3.00 107.00 Standard rateRe-enameling of lettering on existing memorial tablet (all types) (5year old or
more) 103.00 3.00 106.00 Standard rate
Plaque on babies memorial wall, initial set up charge 56.00 2.00 58.00 Standard rate
Lease of plaque for babies memorial (per year) 16.00 0.00 16.00 Standard rate
Granite Ash Vaults
Placement of ashes in above-ground granite vault , including plaque and urn -
10 year lease 975.00 20.00 995.00 Standard rate

20 year lease 1,468.00 29.00 1,497.00 Standard rate
30 year lease 1,957.00 39.00 1,996.00 Standard rate
50 year lease 3,090.00 62.00 3,152.00 Standard rate

Second placement of ashes in existing above-ground granite vault (existing
lease period stands), including plaque and urn 275.00 5.00 280.00 Standard rate
Photo plaque on Vault plaque or Columbarium plaque (each plaque) 134.00 5.00 139.00 Standard rate
Columbarium Niches
Placement of ashes in columbarium niche, includes inscribed granite tablet
and urn                                                                     10 year lease 566.00 11.00 577.00 Standard rate

20 year lease 850.00 17.00 867.00 Standard rate

30 year lease 1,133.00 23.00 1,156.00 Standard rate
50 year lease 2,060.00 10.00 2,070.00 Standard rate

2nd placement in existing columbarium niche (remaining lease period stands).
Includes inscribed granite tablet and urn 275.00 5.00 280.00 Standard rate
Supplement for each additional casket of ashes placed during same
appointment (or if large casket containing two sets of ashes). Vaults and 62.00 2.00 64.00 Standard rate
Other Charges

Replacement or re-facing of memorial tablet (memorial pathway) incl 30 letters 920.00 0.00 920.00 Standard rate
Grey Granite memorial tablet for Garden of Rest (opposite front entrance), incl
30 letters 315.00 9.00 324.00 Standard rate
Each additional letter of inscription on memorial tablet (memorial pathway &
opposite front entrance) 4.00 0.00 4.00 Standard rate
Replacement metal flower container for existing memorial tablet 15.00 1.00 16.00 Standard rate
Additional name/plaque on existing Rose/Shrub or Tree (perspex type) 36.00 0.00 36.00 Standard rate

P
age 62



APPENDIX 4
BOSTON CREMATORIUM

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £Addition to or replacement of existing cast bronze plaque in communal rose
bed 106.00 3.00 109.00 Standard rate
Upgrade to Cast bronze plaque on existing memorial tree or rose bush 106.00 3.00 109.00 Standard rate
Media Fees
Audio only: Recording of a funeral service supplied as CD or USB (first copy) 41.00 0.00 41.00 Standard rate
Each additional CD or USB 20.00 0.00 20.00 Standard rate
Audio visual recording of funeral service supplied on DVD or USB - first copy 43.00 0.00 43.00 Standard rate
Each additional DVD or USB audio visual recording 21.00 1.00 22.00 Standard rate
Webcasting of funeral service (USB/DVD of webcast is extra as above if req) 88.00 0.00 88.00 Standard rate
Visual tribute set up fee 13.00 1.00 14.00 Standard rate

Visual tribute (stills) during service with or without music - per photo 2.00 0.00 2.00 Standard rate

video footage per minute used 6.00 -28.00 -22.00 Standard rate
DVD or USB copy of the visual tribute only 24.00 0.00 24.00 Standard rate
DVD or USB copy of the whole service with the Visual tribute embedded 55.00 0.00 55.00 Standard rate
Fees and Charges 0.00
Cremation Fee - Adult 780.00 0.00 780.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Direct cremation. No funeral service or mourners, 8.30am or
4pm time slot only (cremation next day). Includes 2 pallbearers (wheeled) 545.00 0.00 545.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child 6 - 15 years 97.00 0.00 97.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child 1 month to 5 years 28.00 28.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Child under 1 month, non-viable foetus or body part resulting
from post mortem 18.00 15.00 33.00 Exempt - no VAT
Cremation Fee - Batch Cremation of pre-12 week foetuses (per batch not
exceeding 20.) 47.00 5.00 52.00 Exempt - no VAT

Combined cremation and memorial offers -97.00
A. Standard cremation service including up yo 5 lines inscription in Book of
Remembrance 830.00 -28.00 802.00 Exempt/standard
B. Standard cremation service including a 1 year lease of a Wall plaque,
Tower plaque or Leather Recordia panel (lease renewable in yearly
increments) 830.00 -18.00 812.00 Exempt/standard

C. Standard cremation service including 10 year lease of a columbarium niche 1,220.00 1.00 1,221.00 Exempt/standard

Provision of one pall bearer 25.00 0.00 25.00 Standard rate

Provision of two pall-bearers (maximum & only if available) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Standard rate
Additional service slot in Chapel (when available) 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt - no VAT
Use of Crematorium Chapel for a burial or memorial service or for training
purposes. 200.00 0.00 200.00 Exempt - no VAT
Storage of cremated remains after 28 days 8.00 0.00 8.00 Exempt - no VAT
Bronze Urn 21.00 1.00 22.00 Exempt - no VAT
Polytainer 14.00 1.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (unwitnessed) 156.00 4.00 160.00 Exempt - no VAT
Interment/ exhumation of cremated remains at Crematorium (witnessed with
staff present) 185.00 5.00 190.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains (Witnessed with staff present) 29.00 1.00 30.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (unwitnessed) 68.00 0.00 68.00 Exempt - no VAT
Scattering of Cremated remains from other Crematoria (Witnessed with staff
present) 97.00 1.00 98.00 Exempt - no VAT
Double interment of cremated remains, (one excavation, 2 caskets or both in
same casket) 234.00 6.00 240.00 Exempt - no VAT
Additional Certificate of Cremation (if remains are split or original lost) 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT
Photocopy of Registrars or Coroners disposal certificate 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT
Letter of delcaration for customs - remains taken abroad 15.00 1.00 16.00 Exempt - no VAT

P
age 63



APPENDIX 4
CCTV Closed Circuit TV

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
BusinessPrice on application

P
age 64



APPENDIX 4
COMMERCIAL WASTE FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

Green Bin prices (residual waste) £ £ £
240 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
240 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
240 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
240 Litre - Monthly Non Business
360 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
360 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
360 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
360 Litre - Monthly Non Business
660 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
660 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
660 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
660 Litre - Monthly Non Business
1100 Litre - Once Weekly Non Business
1100 Litre - Twice Weekly Non Business
1100 Litre - Fortnightly Non Business
1100 Litre - Monthly Non Business
Trade Bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business

Blue Bin prices
240L weekly Non Business
240L fortnightly Non Business
240L Monthly Non Business
360L - Fortnightly Non Business
360l - Monthly Non Business
660L Fortnightly Non Business
660L Monthly Non Business
1100L weekly Non Business
1100L Fortnightly Non Business
1100L Monthly Non Business
Trade bags (10 bags per roll) Non Business

Other charges:
Commercial waste bins:
Re-instatement of bin Non Business

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

Price on application

Price on application

Price on application

Price on application
Price on application

Price on application

Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application
Price on application

P
age 65



APPENDIX 4

WASTE SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
BULKY COLLECTION CHARGES - DOMESTIC

Bulky Collections: Standard Items
Collection of 1-2 standard items 18.00 0.00 18.00 Non business
Collection of 3 standard items 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business
Bulky Collections: White Items
Collection of 1 large white goods 26.25 0.00 26.25 Non business
Collection of 2 large white goods 36.75 0.00 36.75 Non business
Any Other Items
Eg Carpets, sheds, wood, garden waste POA POA Non business
Refuse Bins
New/ replacement 240L bin 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business
New/ replacement 360L bin 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business
New/ replacement 660L bin 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business
New/ replacement 1100L bin 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business
Garden Waste Collections
Garden waste collections for 1 bin (per annum) 45.00 0.00 45.00 non business
Garden waste collections for each extra bin (per annum) 20.00 0.00 20.00 non business
Garden waste 240L bin purchase 25.00 0.00 25.00 non business

BULKY COLLECTIONS - COMMERCIAL
Commercial Waste Bulky collections: Standard
Collection of 1-2 standard items 28.80 0.00 28.80 Non business
Collection of 3 standard items 40.00 0.00 40.00 Non business
Collection of 4-5 standard items 48.00 0.00 48.00 Non business

Commercial Waste Bulky collections: White Items
Collection of 1 large white goods 42.00 0.00 42.00 Non business
Collection of 2 large white goods 58.80 0.00 58.80 Non business

STREET CLEANING - COMMERCIAL
Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate-min
2 hours Standard rate
Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Hourly rate -
min 2 hours Standard rate
Street Cleaning - large sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min
1 day Standard rate
Street Cleaning - small sweeper (Driver +1) Day rate - min
1 day Standard rate

Commercial Street Cleaning:
These prices will need to be published as POA (but the calculations are saved in the Ops POA folder)
18.9.20 -MF does not want to incr 'standard' prices 21.22 because of covid situation & subsequent potential financial hardship
Also may make the fly tipping situation worse.

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

P
age 66



GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Commercial Tree Services:
Commercial contract services (Tree)-with cherry picker
(plus disposal costs of any waste) Standard rate
Commercial contract services (Tree)- without cherry picker
(plus disposal costs of any waste) Standard rate
Commercial Play inspections and repairs:
Commercial contract services - Play equipment inspections Standard rate
Commercial contract services - Play equipment repairs Standard rate

These prices will need to be published as POA (but the actual prices saved within the Ops POA folder)

Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application
Price on ApplicationP

age 67



APPENDIX 4
GUILDHALL

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Private Hire (after 6pm there is a minimum of 2 hours hire required)
Private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 50 Price on Application
Private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 80 Price on Application
Private hire of more than one room (price on application) Standard Rates
Charity private hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 40 Price on Application
Charity private hire outside normal opening hours (per hour) * 50 Price on Application

Meeting Room Hire
Meeting room hire within normal opening hours (per hour) 25 5
Meeting room hire outside normal opening hours 8am to 6pm (per hour) 50 Price on Application
Refreshments (per serving) 15 15

Wedding Hire
Wedding hire -  Ceremony only 520 Price on Application#VALUE! Standard Rates
Reception to follow wedding (per hour) 85 Price on Application#VALUE! Standard Rates
Wedding hire -  Ceremony only Outside normal opening hours 620 Price on Application#VALUE! Standard Rates
Reception to follow wedding (per hour) Outside normal opening hours 95 Price on Application#VALUE! Standard Rates

Tours (price is for upto 20 people)
Group guided tour within opening hours (booking required) 60 20 80 Standard Rates
Bespoke tours/talks/on and off site/packages Standard Rates
Paranormal investigations groups Standard Rates

Other
Refreshments (per serving) 15 5 20 Standard Rates
Linen Charge  (per table) 0 5 5 Standard Rates
Bespoke stands at events Standard Rates
Location Hire Standard Rates
Hire of entire Guildhall Standard Rates
Photography fee for occasion events Standard Rates

* Upto 10pm and excluding Christmas and Bank Holidays
The Guildhall is not available for wedding bookings or other hire on bank holidays and during  its Christmas closure period
All bookings are subject to availability
Admin fees charge on third party services e.g catering, venue dressing etc

Price on application

Price on Application

Price on Application
Price on Application
Price on Application

Price on Application

Price on Application

P
age 68



APPENDIX 4
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Health Education - 3217
Unit Food Examination (Charge for initial 1st Hour) 90.20 0.00 90.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Unit Food Examination (Charge per hour after initial hour) 42.40 0.00 42.40 Non business - No VAT charge
Request for a revisit 150.00 0.00 150.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Training courses (food safety)
Setting up a food business 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food Hygiene refresher (Half day) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food Hygiene refresher (Full day) 175.00 0.00 175.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Management system coaching 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Short courses 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Warden - 3219
Dog Fines (Seizure) - FIXED BY STATUTE 25.00 0.00 25.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Stray Dogs - Admin Charge per dog. 20.00 0.00 20.00 Standard rate
Kennelling fees (per day) 11.00 0.00 11.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Dog Control
Dog Fouling (Fixed penalty) - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failing to exclude your dog from a fenced off children’s play area  - FIXED BY
STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failing to put a nuisance or dangerous dog on a lead when requested to do
so by an authorised officer - FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Failure to provide evidence of the means to clear up dog faeces (Bag or
receptacle).- FIXED BY STATUTE 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Mobile Homes Act 2013 - licence fees
New Site Licence 385.00 0.00 385.00 Non business - No VAT charge
New Site Licence per pitch 8.20 0.00 8.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Transfer / amendment of existing site licence 240.00 0.00 240.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Significant amendments 315.00 0.00 315.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Annual fee for existing site licence per pitch 3.10 0.10 3.20 Non business - No VAT charge
Enforcement notices 100.00 0.00 100.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Enforcement notices additional one 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Depositing site rules 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Pollution - 3216
Contaminated Land (consultation and advice) - charged per hour 30.00 0.00 30.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Food Safety
Export Certificate - Can only be issued within council opening hours 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Export Certificate - Issued outside council opening hours NEW 0.00 240.00 240.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Food safety packs 15.00 0.00 15.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Port Health - 3214
Ship Sanitation Certificate - FIXED BY STATUTE 120.00 0.00 120.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Ship Sanitation Extension - FIXED BY STATUTE 55.00 0.00 55.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Street Cleansing - 3235
Litter Fixed Penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Fly tipping penalty - FIXED BY STATUTE 150-400 0 150-400 Non business - No VAT charge

Public Conveniences - 8006
Radar Keys 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 69



APPENDIX 4
MISCELLANEOUS LICENCES

Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges Charges Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

Part A Part B Total
£ £ £ £ £

Sex Establishments (1st Application) 1,547.00 0.00 1,330.00 217.00 1,547.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Sex Establishments (Renewal Application) 539.00 0.00 322.00 217.00 539.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dangerous Wild Animals (1st Application) 284.50 0.00 284.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Dangerous Wild Animals (Renewal Application) 210.00 0.00 210.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dog Breeding (New) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 389.00 0.00 351.00 38.00 389.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Dog Breeding (Renewal) New fee 346.00 0.00 308.00 38.00 346.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Riding Establishment (New) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Riding Establishment (Renewal) + Vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Selling Animals as Pets (New) New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Selling Animals as Pets (Renewal) New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Boarding Dogs/Cats, Home Boarding and Day Care (new) New fee 238.50 0.00 213.50 25.00 238.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Boarding Dogs/Cats, Home Boarding and Day Care (renewal) New fee 195.00 0.00 170.00 25.00 195.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Exhibition of Animals (New) New fee 235.00 0.00 235.00 235.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Exhibition of Animals (Renewal) New fee 235.00 0.00 235.00 235.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Re-inspection on request New fee 49.00 0.00 49.00 49.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Additional Activity payable in addition to the higher fee (inspection fee) New fee 49.00 0.00 49.00 49.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Change of name/address New fee 18.50 0.00 18.50 18.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Transfer due to death of a licence holder New fee 18.50 0.00 18.50 18.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of Licence + vets fees rechargeable at invoiced amount where applicable New fee 24.50 0.00 24.50 24.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Grant 4 years 445.00 0.00 368.00 77.00 445.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Renewal 6 years 368.00 0.00 291.00 77.00 368.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Transfer 148.00 0.00 148.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Zoo Licence Annual Inspection 77.00 0.00 77.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Tattooing, ear piercing, acupuncture & electrolysis Premises Registration 116.00 0.00 86.00 30.00 116.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Tattooing, ear piercing, acupuncture & electrolysis Personal Registration 49.50 0.00 49.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Street Trading Consent 112.50 0.00 112.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Street Trading daily consent 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Scrap Metal Dealers
Scrap Metal Dealer Site Licence 488.50 0.00 316.50 172.00 488.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Scrap Metal Dealer Collector Licence Fee 228.50 0.00 161.50 67.00 228.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of licence collector to site 218.50 0.00 218.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Variation of licence site to collector 57.00 0.00 57.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Change of site manager 47.00 0.00 47.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Minor change e.g. change of licensee details 32.00 0.00 32.00 Non business - No VAT charge

Duplicate Licence (Standard replacement Licence fee for all licence types) 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

Register entry fee (for the first entry and £0.50 per entry thereafter) 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 70



APPENDIX 4
Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates 2022/23 Statutory fees - no increase.

Bands A B C D E

Non-Domestic rateable value
£0 -
£4,300

£4,301 -
£33,000

£33,001 -
£87,000

£87,001 -
£125,000

£125,001
and over

Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates (New, Variations & Conversion)

If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:
Band D = £450 X 2 = £900
Band E = £635 X 3 = £1905

Bands A B C D E
Non-Domestic rateable value £100 £190 £315 £450 £635
Multiplier Charge see above £0 £0 £0 £900 £1,905

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000 (For New and Variation)

Capacity
5,000 -
9,999

10,000 -
14,999

15,000 -
19,999

20,000 -
29,999

30,000 -
39,999

40,000 -
49,999

50,000 -
59,999

60,000 -
69,999

70,000 -
79,999

80,000 -
89,999

90,000 -
Plus

Additional Fee (£) 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 16,000 24,000 32,000 40,000 48,000 56,000 64,000

Annual Fee and Variation Fee For Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

Payable on anniversary of grant
Plus additional fee see below if capacity is over 5,000
Multiplier applies to band D and E
If Band D and E are used exclusively or primarily for supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises then a multiplier applies:
Band D = £320 X 2 = £640
Band E = £350 X 3 = £1050
For Club paid by secretary

Bands A B C D E
Non-Domestic rateable value £70 £180 £295 £320 £350

Additional Fee Based on Capacity over 5000

Capacity
5,000 -
9,999

10,000 -
14,999

15,000 -
19,999

20,000 -
29,999

30,000 -
39,999

40,000 -
49,999

50,000 -
59,999

60,000 -
69,999

70,000 -
79,999

80,000 -
89,999

90,000 -
Plus

Additional Fee (£) 500 1,000 2,000 4,000 8,000 12,000 16,000 20,000 24,000 28,000 32,000

Other Fees
£

PREMISES Theft, Loss etc. of Premises Licence or Summary 10.50
315.00

10.50
23.00
23.00Transfer: Premises Licence

OTHER FEE

Provisional Statement
Change of Name or Address (Premises Licence Holder)
Variation of Designated Premises Supervisor

P
age 71



APPENDIX 4
23.00

CLUBS 10.50
10.50
10.50

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTICE 21.00
10.50

PERSONAL LICENCE 37.00
10.50
10.50

FREEHOLDER/LEASEHOLDER 21.00

Exemption of Fees for Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificates

Applies for regulated entertainment at certain premises
Premises - school, college, church or community hall or similar building
The exemption does not apply to any other licensable activity within these premises

Exemption
No fee for grant or variation
No annual fee

Theft, Loss etc. of Club Premises Certificates or Summary
Change of Name or Alteration of Club Rules

Theft, Loss etc. of Personal Licence

Register of Interest

Change of Registered Address of Club
Temporary Event Notice
Theft, Loss etc. of Temporary Event Notice
Grant/Renewal of Personal Licence

Change of Name and Address

Interim Authority

P
age 72



APPENDIX 4
HACKNEY CARRIAGE, PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE AND OTHER LICENCES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence 126.00 0.00 126.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Drivers Licence - RENEWAL 106.50 0.00 106.50 Non business - No VAT charge
DVLA Licence check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Additional manual DVLA check 5.00 0.00 5.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Private Hire Vehicle Licence 139.00 0.00 139.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Private Hire Operators Licence 172.50 0.00 172.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Hire of Vehicle Plate 26.00 0.00 26.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Replacement Drivers Badge 10.50 0.00 10.50 Non business - No VAT charge
Drivers Knowledge Test Fee 16.00 0.00 16.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Mogo Plate Fee 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Mogo Plate Bracket 12.00 0.00 12.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Route 2 DBS validation check 20.00 0.00 20.00 Non business - no VAT charge
DBS check (Set by DBS - DBS reduced charge 19.20) 40.00 0.00 40.00 Non business - no VAT charge

P
age 73



APPENDIX 4
FEES FOR GAMBLING ACT 2005 (introduced wef 21st May 2007)

2022/23
LICENCE TYPE BBC

Charge

Bingo Premises Licence
Application fee for provisional statement 784.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 461.00
Application fee new premises 784.00
Annual Fee 572.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Adult Gaming Centre
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 447.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Family Entertainment Centre
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 406.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 413.50
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Betting Premises
Application fee for provisional statement 721.00
Licence for provisional statement premises 427.00
Application fee new premises 721.00
Annual Fee 392.00
Variation of Licence 700.00
Transfer fee 448.00
Application for reinstatement 448.00

Miscellaneous
Change of circumstances 25.00
Fee for copy notices 15.00
Fee for copy of a licence 15.00
Fee for Permits - Statutory 15.00
Temporary Use Notices 165.00

Gambling permit
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit (new/renewal) 200.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Variation 100.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit (new/renewal) 200.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Club gaming machine permit - variation 100.00

Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit (new/renewal/Transitional fee) 100.00
Gambling permit - club fast track gaming/gaming machine permit Annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - small society lottery registration 40.00
Gambling permit - small society lottery registration  annual fee 20.00

Alcohol and entertainment licences/temporary events permits
Gambling permit - FEC gaming machine (new/renewal) 300.00
Gambling permit - FEC permit - change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - FEC permit - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming (new/renewal) 300.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming - change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - Prize gaming - copy of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - Notification of 2 or less machines 50.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines 150.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Annual fee 50.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Change of name 25.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Copy  of permit 15.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Variation 100.00
Gambling permit - Alcohol licensed premises - more than 2 machines - Transfer 25.00Page 74



APPENDIX 4

LAND CHARGES

Proposed
LCC LCC BBC BBC Charges

Element Element (with VAT) Element (no VAT) Element (with VAT) 2022/23
£ £ £ £ £

CON 29 Search Fee  - Part R (Manual) 23.10 29.11 52.62 63.14 92.25 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part R (Electronic) 23.10 29.11 52.62 63.14 92.25 Standard rate
Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.  Deregulated 07-
08 (Manual) 0.00 21.00 0.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge
NLIS Statutory LLC1 - Fixed by statute up to 06-07.
Deregulated 07-08 (Electronic) 0.00 21.00 0.00 21.00 Non business - No VAT charge
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 4 1.10 1.39 14.59 17.51 18.90 Standard rate

CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 8 1.10 1.39 4.09 4.91 6.30 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 21 3.30 4.16 12.03 14.44 18.60
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 22 6.60 8.32 8.57 10.28 18.60 Standard rate
CON 29 Search Fee - Part O Optional Enquiry 0.00 12.00 14.40 14.40 Standard rate
Additional Enquiries 0.00 18.00 21.60 21.60 Non business - No VAT charge
CON 29 Search Fee - (manual & electronic) Additional Parcels
of Land 17.00 20.40 20.40 Standard rate
LLC1 Additional Parcels of Land 0.00 1.00 0.00 1.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Cancellation of LLC1 10.00 0.00 10.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Cancellation of CON 29 0.00 30.00 36.00 36.00 Standard rate
Informal Searches 0.00 26.00 31.20 31.20 Standard rate

Lincolnshire County Council have notified the Council of an increase to their element but have not confirmed the 21.22 charge, as a result the LCC element will change from that
quoted above. This will be revised once confirmation has been received.

P
age 75



APPENDIX 4LEISURE POOL

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
LEISURE POOL
Swimming
Adult 4.50 4.50 Standard rate
OAP Concessions 3.40 3.40 Standard rate
Junior Swim 3.30 3.30 Standard rate
Disabled Concession 3.40 3.40 Standard rate
Spectator 1.00 1.00 Standard rate
Family Swim 12.50 12.50 Standard rate
Lessons Junior and Adult (1/2 hour x 7 sessions) 34.65 34.65 Exempt - no VAT
One to One swimming lessons 17.50 17.50 Exempt - no VAT
Crash course swimming lessons (1/2 hour x 5 sessions) 22.50 22.50 Exempt - no VAT
Activity Sessions 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Adults 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Concession 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit College / School 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Staff non member 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Kids Club - Membership 13.00 13.00 Exempt - no VAT
Child Activity Pack - Monthly Pass 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Child Activity Pack - 30 day pass 25.00 25.00 Exempt - no VAT
Kids Club - Non member fee 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Under 5's Swim 1.00 1.00 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit (Single session) 6.00 6.00 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit concession (Single session) 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Aqua Fit 50+ (Single session) 4.00 4.00 Exempt - no VAT
School (per child) with staff supervision 1.70 1.70 Exempt - no VAT
Club and Individual Training

BASC agreed rate per week ( as determined throught the Partnership SLA)(not in on Sundays
wef: Sept 2015) Price set until August 2018 1,076.90 1,076.90 Exempt - no VAT
SUB-AQUA
Leisure Pool Hire
Training Room Activity Room 25.50 25.50 See note 1 below
Party Package (Pool plus activity room - max 30) (inc £20 deposit) 125.00 125.00 Standard rate
Party Package (Activity Room) 50.00 50.00 Standard rate

Table Tennis (table hire 55 minutes - activity room) 5.00 5.00 Standard rate
Table Tennis (bat hire 55 minutes - activity room) 1.50 1.50 Standard rate

Six month Swim Pass
12 months Adult NEW FEE 301.20 301.20 Standard rate
6 months OAP Concessions NEW FEE 270.00 270.00 Standard rate
30 Day Swim Pass 35.00 35.00
Adult - Direct Debit monthly 26.40 26.40
Concessions - Direct Debit monthly - now in line with gym - 1 price for concessions 23.70 23.70
Courses / Training
RLSS NPLQ (Including First Aid) 230.00 230.00 Exempt - no VAT
First Aid 125.00 125.00 Exempt - no VAT
Defib 70.00 70.00 Exempt - no VAT
NRASTAC (School teacher safety training) 90.00 90.00 Exempt - no VAT

Note 1 - The VAT liability of the charge for the activity areas is exempt if it is purely room hire, without use of pool.

Note 2 - The VAT liability may change if there are a series of lets - please refer to rules on Sports Charges Fees & Charges page

P
age 76



APPENDIX 4
FITNESS SUITE

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
FITNESS SUITE
Club membership
Induction (knocked off joining fee in 1st month) 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT
Joining Fee 25.00 25.00 Standard rate
Joining Fee (College) 15.00 15.00 Standard rate
Monthly fees (club members)
Gym/health/swim - 29.95 29.95 Standard rate
Corporate 26.50 26.50 Standard rate
Student 22.95 22.95 Standard rate
Concession 23.95 23.95 Standard rate
All facilities annual - 12+1 months from 15 months 359.40 359.40 Standard rate
All facilities annual CONCESSION - 12+1 months from 15 months 287.40 270.00 Standard rate
3 Month Pack - REMOVED
3 Month Concession membership REMOVED
One month activity pass 46.00 46.00 Standard rate

Monthly fees (College)
All facilities 23.95 23.95 Standard rate

Casual fees (College)
Gym 7.00 7.00 Standard rate
Classes 5.00 5.00 Exempt - no VAT
Health/swim 5.00 5.00 Standard rate
Float Fit - Member 0.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT

Casual fees (non-members)
Gym 10.00 10.00 Standard rate
Concession Gym 5.50 5.50 Standard rate
Classes 7.00 7.00 Exempt - no VAT
Float Fit - Concession Non-Member 5.50 5.50 Exempt - no VAT
Extend class 3.00 3.00 Exempt - no VAT
Fit Fifties class 4.00 4.00 Exempt - no VAT
Health/swim 7.50 7.50 Standard rate
Full fitness assessment 30.70 30.70 Exempt - no VAT
GP referral scheme 0.00 0.00 Exempt - no VAT

Group Rig and TRX training 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT
Personal Training (member) 15.00 15.00 Exempt - no VAT
Personal Training (NON member) 20.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT

Weight and body composition 10.00 10.00 Exempt - no VAT

Page 77



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Craft Market - 15 stalls maximum
Per stall - payment on day 14.00 0.00 14.00 Exempt - no VAT
Per stall - paid up front (quarter or month) 12.00 0.00 12.00 Exempt - no VAT

Christmas Market (one day)
One market stall or pop up gazebo 30.00 0.00 30.00 Exempt - no VAT
Pitches (per 1ft frontage) 2.70 0.00 2.70 Exempt - no VAT
Food plot per 1 ft. frontage 5.20 0.00 5.20 Exempt - no VAT

Through the ages, 2 days
Pop up gazebo 80.00 0.00 80.00 Exempt - no VAT
Pitches (per 1 ft. frontage) 7.40 0.00 7.40 Exempt - no VAT

1940s, 1 day
Pop up gazebo 20.00 0.00 20.00 Exempt - no VAT
Catering 50.00 0.00 50.00 Exempt - no VAT
Amusements 50.00 0.00 50.00 Exempt - no VAT
Bar 0.00 Standard rate

Outdoor Cinema
One plot - food/bar/sweets 35.00 Standard rate

Party in the park
Food trader

£40 plus 5%
of takings Standard rate

Bar Standard rate
Misc. seller - hair braids/balloons

£20 plus 5%
of takings Exempt - no VAT

A Stall maybe be free of charge if a group are performing at the event
Stalls may not exceed 5 ft. in depth

CRAFT MARKET CHARGES

5% of takings

£15 plus 5% of takings

10% of takingsP
age 78



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Market Place & Bargate - (stall hire-10ft width)
Regular trader **
per market 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (monthly in advance) 21.00 21.00 Exempt - no VAT
per market (quarterly in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (annually in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
Casual Trader
per market 24.00 24.00 Exempt - no VAT
Block of 6 markets - have to agree dates to stand
at time of booking- refunds not avaliable 130.00 130.00 New fee

Market Place - 100 markets/50 weeks

Pitches (per 1ft. Frontage)
Regular trader **
per market 0.00 0.00 Removed
per market (monthly in advance) 1.40 1.40 Exempt - no VAT
per market (quarterly in advance) 0.00 0.00 Removed
Electricity (other than for lights in winter) 2.00 2.00 Standard rate
Trade Waste Bin 1000l 0.00 0.00 Removed
Trade Waste Bin 240l 0.00 0.00 Removed
Trade Waste Bags 0.00 0.00 Removed
Casual Trader
per market 1.90 1.90 Exempt - no VAT
Block of 6 markets - have to agree dates to stand
at time of booking- refunds not avaliable 1.70 1.70 New fee

Market Trader Parking Permits
3 hour ticket purchased for all day-limited car parks 2.00 2.00 Standard or non business

(depends on car park)

** Incentive for regular traders that stand every week April to Feb (excluding holidays) can stand for free in March.

** Incentive for NEW traders only stand for 4 markets and get 4 free

MARKET CHARGES

P
age 79



EVENT TICKET CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Outdoor Cinema - One screening
Early bird adult ticket 5.75 0.00 5.75 standard rate
Early bird child ticket 3.75 0.00 3.75 standard rate
Early bird family ticket * 16.00 0.00 16.00 standard rate
Standard adult ticket 7.50 0.00 7.50 standard rate
Standard child ticket 5.50 0.00 5.50 standard rate
Standard family ticket * 22.50 0.00 22.50 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult ticket 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate child ticket 8.00 0.00 8.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate family  ticket * 30.00 0.00 30.00 standard rate

Outdoor Cinema - Two screenings
Early bird adult ticket 11.00 0.00 11.00 standard rate
Early bird child ticket 7.00 0.00 7.00 standard rate
Early bird family ticket * 26.00 0.00 26.00 standard rate
Standard adult ticket 14.00 0.00 14.00 standard rate
Standard child ticket 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate
Standard family ticket * 36.00 0.00 36.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult ticket 18.00 0.00 18.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate child ticket 14.00 0.00 14.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate family ticket* 50.00 0.00 50.00 standard rate

Party in the Park/Music and Beer Festival
Early bird adult, 17yrs and over ** 5.00 0.00 5.00 standard rate
Standard adult, 17 yrs. and over 7.00 0.00 7.00 standard rate
Cash price on the gate adult 10.00 0.00 10.00 standard rate

* family ticket, two adults and two children, adults over 16 yrs., children under 16yrs, babies under 18 months free

Under 16yrs free must be accompanied by an adult

*family ticket, two adults and two children, Adults over 16yrs, children under 16yrs, babies under 18 months free

** Limited number available, first month of ticket sales and restricted to 500. Standard go on sale after
the early bird tickets are sold out.

Early bird on sale for a limited time (minimum 2 weeks and maximum 4 weeks after event announced).
Standard go on sale after the early bird tickets are sold out.

Page 80



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Community/Individual Event fee not for profit  (up to 500 people) 70.00 0.00 70.00 standard rateCommunity/Individual Event fee not for profit (between 500 -999
people) 95.00 0.00 95.00 standard rate
Registered Charity (up to 500 people) 70.00 0.00 70.00 standard rate
Registered Charity (between 500 - 999 people) 95.00 0.00 95.00 standard rate
All Commercial events standard rate
Use of Premises Licence (500 -999 people) 75.00 0.00 75.00 Non Standard
Use of Premises Licence (up to 500 people) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non Standard
Assistance with events in Boston Market place (per event) 50.00 0.00 50.00 Non Standard

List of Event Spaces – this relates to Borough Council land only
 (other spaces, such as Market Place, are owned and controlled by Lincolnshire County Council)

Broadfield Lane Recreation Ground
Burgess Pit Recreation Ground
Shelton’s Field Recreation Ground
Garfit's Lane
Central Park
St. Johns Recreation Ground
Witham Way Country Park
Woodville Road Recreation Ground

EVENT CHARGES

Price negotiated

Page 81



APPENDIX 4

0.5hr 1hr 2hr 3hr 4hr
All Day
8am-
6pm

Sun
8am-
6pm

Eve
6pm-
8am

48 hrs
(2 days)

72 hrs
(3 days)

120hrs
(5 days)

168 hrs
(7 days)

Bargate Green PE21 6RU 0.50 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Custom House Quay PE21 6NH 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

On Market Place PE21 6EH 0.50 1.50 1.20 1.00
On Pump Square PE21 6QW 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
On Wide Bargate PE21 6RX 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

Cattle Market PE21 6RX 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
Botolph Street PE21 6TU 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
Doughty Quay PE21 8SP 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
West End PE21 8SS 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00
St George's Road PE21 8YB 1.50 2.00 2.50 3.00 4.00 1.20 1.00 5.00 7.00 15.00

Municipal Buildings PE21 8SS 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
On South Square PE21 6HX 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

Irby Street PE21 8SA
Artillery Row PE21 6TY 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Maud Street PE21 6TP 2.00 1.20 1.00
Blue Street PE21 8UW
Buoy Yard PE21 6JX 2.00 1.20 1.00
Victoria Place PE21 8UL 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Staniland PE21 8SS 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
George Street PE21 8XF 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00
Spayne Road PE21 6JT 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00

On Station Approach PE21 8RN 1.00 1.20 1.50 2.50 1.20 1.00 5.00 7.00 15.00
Tunnard Street PE21 6PL 2.00 1.20 1.00 10.00 12.00

Standard Off Street Parking
Non Business On Street Parking

Seasonal Tickets Valid at:
Botolph Street PE21 6TU
Doughty Quay PE21 8SP
St George's Road PE21 8YB
Artillery Row PE21 6TY
Maud Street PE21 6TP
Buoy Yard PE21 6JX
Victoria Place PE21 8UL
Staniland PE21 8SS
George Street PE21 8XF
Spayne Road PE21 6JT
Tunnard Street PE21 6PL

Permit only £150 per year

On/Off
Street

Car Parks

Parking Fees 2022/23
Hours £

For more info refer to Boston Car Park Guide

SHORT-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

MIXED-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

LONG-STAY CAR PARKS (Mon-Sat 8am-6pm)

Permit only £150 per yearP
age 82



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23

£ £ £
Trade bay (annual) 24 hours per day 370.00 0.00 370.00
Traders bay (quarterly) 24 hours per day 100.00 0.00 100.00
Traders bay (monthly) 24 hours per day 35.00 0.00 35.00

Parent Parking Permits
(selected car parks only)

(per day according to
number of school days
each term) 0.50 0.00 0.50

Premier Permit (annual) - long
stay 24 hours per day 450.00 0.00 450.00
Premier Permit (quarterly) - long
stay 24 hours per day 120.00 0.00 120.00
Premier Permit (monthly) - long
stay 24 hours per day 45.00 0.00 45.00
24 hour EV charging permit
(annual) 24 hours per day 400.00 0.00 400.00
Season Tickets - daily (annual) -
long stay 8 am - 6 pm 350.00 0.00 350.00
Season Tickets - daily
(quarterly) - long stay 8 am - 6 pm 95.00 0.00 95.00
Season Tickets - daily (monthly) -
long stay 8 am - 6 pm 35.00 0.00 35.00
Season Ticket - overnight 6 pm - 8.00 am 210.00 0.00 210.00
Season Ticket - overnight
(quarterly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 60.00 0.00 60.00
Season Ticket - overnight
(monthly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 25.00 0.00 25.00
Overnight EV permit (monthly) 6 pm - 8.00 am 20.00 0.00 20.00
Resident's season tickets
(annual) 24 hours per day 225.00 0.00 225.00
Resident's season tickets
(quarterly) 24 hours per day 60.00 0.00 60.00
Resident's season tickets
(monthly) 24 hours per day 22.50 0.00 22.50
Resident's season ticket-daily
(annual) 8am - 6pm 175.00 0.00 175.00
Resident's season ticket-daily
(quarterly) 8am - 6pm 47.50 0.00 47.50
Resident's season ticket - daily
(monthly) 8am - 6pm 17.50 0.00 17.50
Resident's season ticket-
overnight (annual) 6pm - 8am 105.00 0.00 105.00
Resident's season ticket-
overnight (quarterly) 6pm - 8am 30.00 0.00 30.00
Resident's season ticket -
overnight (monthly) 6pm - 8am 22.50 0.00 22.50

P
age 83



APPENDIX 4PARKING SEASON TICKETS AND FINES Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23

£ £ £
Resident's overnight EV permit
(monthly) 6pm - 8am 17.50 0.00 17.50

Blue Street season ticket 24 hours per day 150.00 0.00 150.00
Staff Charges 7 Days n/a 0.00 n/a
Bus Departures 0.32 0.00 0.32
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 25.00 0.00 25.00
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28
days) 50.00 0.00 50.00
Lower Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 days) 75.00 0.00 75.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14 35.00 0.00 35.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid within 14-28
days) 70.00 0.00 70.00
Higher Band Penalty Charge
Notice(PCN) (paid after 28 days) 105.00 0.00 105.00
Electricity per KWH 0.32 0.00 0.32 New

Seasonal Tickets Valid at:
Botolph Street
Doughty Quay
St George's Road
Artillery Row
Maud Street
Buoy Yard
Victoria Place
Staniland
George Street
Spayne Road
Tunnard Street

The above parking charges are inclusive of VAT
Penalty Charge Notices are Non-Vatable
The bus departure rates are exclusive of VAT (standard rated)

P
age 84



APPENDIX 4
BUILDING CONTROL FEES AND CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Copy of Building Regulation Approval (where number is quoted) 40.00 40.00 Standard rate
Letter of Comfort 52.50 52.50 Standard rate
Building Regulations (Confirmation of erection of outbuildings in
accordance with the approved plans) 204.75 204.75 Standard rate

P
age 85



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £

30.70 30.70 Non business - no VAT charge
Production of Plans for consultation and inspection
purposes only

A0 size (841mm x 1189mm) 4.10 4.10 Standard rate
A1 size (841mm x 594mm) 2.10 2.10 Standard rate
A2 size (420mm x 594mm) 1.00 1.00 Standard rate
A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Black & White 0.30 0.30 Standard rate
A3 size (297mm x 420mm) Colour 0.60 0.60 Standard rate
A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Black & White 0.10 0.10 Standard rate
A4 size (297mm x 210mm) Colour 0.20 0.20 Standard rate
Administartion charge * 7.50 7.50 Standard rate

Adopted South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 78.00 78.00 Standard rate
Postage & Packaging 5.50 5.50 Standard rate
Copy of Tree Preservation Orders 0.00 0.00 Non business - no VAT charge
Copies of Local Development Schemes 17.10 17.10 Zero rated - 0%
If invoice is required for any of above services 5.40 5.40 VAT liability depends on what invoice is for

*Where requests for documents/information exceed 30minutes of Technical Support time, an admin handling charge is to apply at the discretion of the Planning Office Manager

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning Application information searches
- flat cost per site to include copy of decision notices

P
age 86



Planning Application Fees
Charges
2022/23

£
Outline Planning Permission
Site Area Not more than 2.5

hectares
£462 per 0.1 hectare

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 2.5
hectares

£11,432 + £138 per 0.1
hectares up to a maximum of
£150,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations / extensions to a single
dwellinghouse, including works within

Single dwellinghouse £206.00
Non business - no VAT charge

Alterations or extensions to existing
dwellinghouses, including works within
boundaries

Single dwellinghouse
(or single flat)

£206.00

Non business - no VAT charge
2 or more
dwellinghouses (or
two or more flats)

£407.00

Non business - no VAT charge
New dwellinghouses Not more then 50 new

dwellinghouses
£462 per dwellinghouse

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 50 new
dwellinghouses

£22,859 + £138 per
additional dwellinghouse up
to a maximum £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

No increase in gross
floor space or no more
than 40 sq m

£234.00

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 40 sq m but
no more than 75 sq m

£462.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 75 sq m byt
no more than 3,750 sq
m

£462 for each 75sq m or part
thereof

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 3,750 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each

additional 75 sq m in excess
of 3,750 sq m to a maximum
of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

Not more than 465 sq
m

£96.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 465 sq m
but not more than 540
sq m

£462.00

Non business - no VAT charge
More than 540 sq m
but not more than
4,215 sq m

£462 for first 540 sq m +
£462 for each 75 sq m (or
part thereof) in excess of 540
sq m Non business - no VAT charge

More than 4,215 sq m £22,859 + £138 for each 75
sq m (or part thereof) in
excess of 4,215 sq m up to a
maximum of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Gross floor space to be created by
development

Not more than 465 sq
m

£96.00
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 465 sq m £2,580.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 5
hectares

£462 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More than 5 hectares £22,859 + additional £138 for
each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 5
hectares to a maximum of
£300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

The erection of buildings (on land used for agriculture for agricultural purpose)

Erection of Glasshouses and Polytunnels (on land used for the purposes of agriculture)

Erection / alterations / replacement of plant and machinery

Householder Applications

Full Applications
(and First Submissions of Reserved Matters; or Technical Details Concent)

Erection of buildings (not dwellinghouses, agricultural, glasshouses, plant nor machinery)

Page 87



Car parks, service roads or other accesses For existing uses £234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15 hectares £34,934 + £138 for each 0.1
hectare (or part thereof) in
excess of 15 hectares up to a
maximum of £78,000

Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 7.5
hectares

£508 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 7.5
hectares

£38,070 + additional £151 for
each 0.1 hectare (or part
thereof) in excess of 7.5
hectares up to a maximum of
£300,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£257 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15 hectares £38,520 + additional £151 for
each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Not more than 15
hectares

£234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

More then 15 hectares £34,934 + additional £138 for
each 0.1 in excess of 15
hectare up to a maximum of
£78,000 Non business - no VAT charge

Site area Any site area £234 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) up to a
maximum of £2,028 Non business - no VAT charge

Same as Full

£234.00 Non business - no VAT charge
Half the normal planning fee Non business - no VAT charge

£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge

£462.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£206.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£96.00
£96.00

Construction of new dwellinghouses Not more than 50
dwellinghouses £334 for each dwellinghouse
More than 50
Dwellinghouses

£16,525 +£100 for each
dwellinghouse in excess of
50 - Maximum fee of
£300,000

Full fee due or if full fee
already paid then £462 due

Non business - no VAT charge

£234
Non business - no VAT charge

£34 per request for
Householder otherwise £116
per request Non business - no VAT charge

Request for confirmation that one or more planning conditions have
been complied with

Change of use *refer to guidance
Change of use including building operations * refer to guidance

Reserved Matters
Application for approval of reserved matters following outline approval

Application for removal or variation of a condition following grant of
planning permission

Approval / Variation / discharge of condition

Proposed use or operation

Lawful Development Certificates
Existing use or operation

Existing use or operation - lawful not to comply with any condition or
limitation

Prior Approval

Agriculture and Forestry buildings & operations

Collection facility within the curtilage of a shop
Temporary Buildings or use associated with commercial Film-Making

Operations connected with exploratory drilling for oil or natural gas

Demolition of buildings
Communications (previously referred to as 'Telecommunications Code
Systems Operators')

Applications other than Building Works

Waste (Use of land for disposal of refuse or waste materials or deposit of material remaining after
extraction or storage of minerals)

Other operations (winning & working of minerals ) excluding oil and natural gas

Other operations (not coming within any of the above categories)

Larger Home Extensions (from 19 August 2019)

Operations (other than exploratory drilling) for the winning and working of oil or natural gas

Page 88



Number of dwellinghouses Not more than 50
dwellinghouses

£462 for each
Non business - no VAT charge

More than 50
dwellinghouses

£22,859 + £138 for each in
excess of 50 up to a
maximum of £300,000 Non business - no VAT charge
£462 Non business - no VAT charge

£132 Non business - no VAT charge
£132

Non business - no VAT charge
£462 Non business - no VAT charge

£34.00 Non business - no VAT charge
£234.00 Non business - no VAT charge

£402 for each 0.1 hectare (or
part thereof) Non business - no VAT charge

£2500 (Developer may be
required to pay additional
costs such as advertising) Non business - no VAT charge

Change of Use of a building to use as one or more separate dwellinghouses, or other cases

Advertising

Other Charges of Use of a building or land

Application under Section 257 for diversion of Public Right of Way

Application for a Non-material Amendment Following a Grant of Planning Permission
Applications in respect of householder developments
Applications in respect of other developments

Application for Permission in Principle
Site area

Relating to the business on the premises
Advance signs which are not situated on or visible from the site,
directing the public to a business
Other advertisements

Page 89



APPENDIX 4

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £

TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT
Householder development including alterations and extensions. 85.00 85.00 Standard rate
Change of use including siting of caravans. 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Development of 1-10 dwellings, or residential development on sites of less than 0.50 ha including
changes of use to residential.

£220 for 1st dwelling; and
£130 for each additional

dwelling.

Based on no. of dwellings; £220
for 1st dwelling; plus £130 for

each additional dwelling.

Based on site area i.e. principle
only, £220 for 0.1ha; plus £130

for each additional 0.1ha (or
part thereof). Standard rate

Development of 11-50 dwellings, or residential development on sites of over 0.50 ha but less than 1.0
ha including changes of use to residential.

£1,000 for the 10th dwelling;
and £65 for each additional

dwelling.

Based on no. of dwellings;
£1,455 for the 11th dwelling
plus £65 for each additional

dwelling to a maximum of
£3,000.

Based on site area i.e. principle
only; £1,455 for 0.5ha; plus

£130 for each additional 0.1ha Standard rate

Development of 51+ dwellings, or residential development on sites of more than 1.0 including changes
of use to residential.

Minimum fee £3,000 with
additional fee subject to

negotiation dependent upon
complexity of proposal (PPA
encouraged) and resources

required.

£3500 Although Planning
Performance Agreement
encouraged.

Standard rate
Non residential development up to 499 square metres floor area or 0.50 hectare site area. 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Non residential development of over 500 and 999 square metres floor area or between 0.51 and 1.0
hectares site area.

£250 plus £125 for each
additional 100m²; or £1,000

for each 0.1 ha

£250 for 500sqm or 0.5ha plus
£125 for each additional 100m²; or

£125  for each 0.1ha (or part
thereof) Standard rate

Non residential development of over 1000 and 4999 square metres floor area or between 1.1 and 2.0
hectares site area.

£825 for 1000m² plus £75 for
each additional 100m² or 0.1

ha.

£875 for 1000m² plus £125 for
each additional 1000m² or 0.1ha

Standard rate

Non residential development of over 5000 square metres floor area or over 2.1 hectares site area.

£3,000 with additional fee
subject to negotiation

dependent upon complexity
of proposal (PPA

encouraged).

£2500

Although Planning Performance
Agreement encouraged. Standard rate

Alterations to non-residential development where no new floor area space is created. 100.00 100.00 Standard rate
Listed Building Advice 120.00 120.00 Standard rate

£80.00;
Alterations to a listed building

£120.00; Additional site visit
£125.00

80.00

Standard rate

Hazardous Substances Consent 120.00 120.00 Standard rate

Any other proposals not captured by the above 200.00 200.00 Standard rate

Exemptions and Reductions
Proposals by parish and town councils and non profit making organisations No Charge No Charge
Proposals relating to the needs of persons with disabilities. No Charge No Charge
Proposals by registered social landlords No Charge No Charge

S7:S13S7:S14S10S7:S12S7:S16R7:S16Q7:S16

Where a proposal covers more than one category of development the highest of the relevant fees will be charged.
Follow up enquiry including revised details to be charged at 50% of fee, if within 6months of the original response

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES-PRE APPLICATION ADVICE

Fees for Planning Performance Agreements are negotiated on a case-by-case basis. The charges incurred are to be negotiated between the Council and the development proposer,
following an initial understanding of both the scheme and the resource implications.
The Council will seek to recover costs associated with the resourcing of the agreement (such as Officer time) and including fees incurred from specialists within and external to the
Council as may be required. In addition, the fees will cover administration of the agreement, but may exclude the costs associated with drawing up or signing the agreement depending on
whether this is undertaken by the Council or the proposer.

P
age 90



S106 Monitoring Fees 2022/23

Development Size Fee
Minor Developments – less than 10 residential units and where the
gross floor space to be built is up to 1,000 square metres, or where
the site area is less than 1 hectare. Where the number of dwellings to
be constructed or floor area proposed is not given in the application, a
site area of less than 0.5 hectares is classed as a minor development.

£1,500

Small scale Major Developments – 10-199 residential units
(inclusive) and where the gross floor space to be built is 1,000 – 9,999
square metres, or where the site area is 1 hectare and less than 2
hectares. Where the number of dwellings to be constructed or floor
area proposed is not given in the application, a site area of between
0.5 hectares and less than 4 hectares is classed as a small scale
major development.

£2,500

Large scale Major Developments – 200 or more residential units and
where the gross floor space to be built is 10,000 square metres or
more, or where the site area is 2 hectares or more. Where the number
of dwellings to be constructed or floor area proposed is not given in
the application, a site area of 4 hectares or more is classed as a large
scale major development.

£3,500

Deeds of Variations – For all Deeds of Variation agreements.
£350

Confirmation of compliance with Section 106 planning obligations
(desktop assessment)* £75 inc VAT

*Site Visit associated with Confirmation of Compliance with Section
106 planning obligations

£100 inc
VAT

Page 91



APPENDIX 4
SPORTS CHARGES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Football Pitch per match under-10's 17.00 0.00 17.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch per match under-16's 22.00 0.00 22.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch per match Adults 35.00 0.00 35.00 Standard rate
Football Pitch unauthorised use 80.00 0.00 80.00 Standard rate

Please avoid single lets for 24 hours or more and series of lets.
If pitch/court is a single let for 24hours or more, income is exempt and therefore no VAT is charged.

If pitch/court is a series of lets and fulfills ALL of the following criteria, income is exempt (no VAT charged):
1. 10 or more lets/sessions booked
2. Each let is for the same activity
3. Each let is in the same place
4. The interval between each let is at least 1 day, but no more than 14 days
5. The series of lets is paid for as a whole and there is no provision for a refund
6. The facilities are let out to a school, club, association or organisation such as local league
7. The person(s) to whom facilities are let has exclusive use of them during the sessions

P
age 92



APPENDIX 4

Homeless Hostel Rent and Charges

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
 - Rent element only per week 163.94 3.36 167.30 Exempt
 - Rent element only per night 23.42 0.48 23.90 Exempt
 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per wk. 21.98 0.42 22.40 Exempt
 - Service Charge (Heating, lighting, water) - per night 3.14 0.06 3.20 Exempt

TOTAL CHARGE PER WEEK 185.92 189.70
TOTAL CHARGE PER NIGHT 26.56 27.10

P
age 93



APPENDIX 4

HMO LICENCE FEES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Variation of existing licence 0.00 0.00 0.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Process of initial application cost - Part 1 479.00 0.00 479.00 Non business - No VAT charge
Post approval application cost - Part 2 469.00 0.00 469.00 Non business - No VAT charge

P
age 94



APPENDIX 4

Housing Act Notice

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hazard Awareness Notice (Owner Occupier) No Charge 0.00 No Charge Exempt
Hazard Awareness Notice (private rented sector) 100.00 0.00 100.00 Exempt
Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition
Order, Notice of Emergency Remedial Action,
Emergency Prohibition Order  - (for one hazard) 200.00 20.00 220.00 Exempt
Improvement Notice; Prohibition Order; Demolition
Order, Notice of Emergency Remedial Action,
Emergency Prohibition Order- (for each additional
hazard included within the Notice / Order) 60.00 0.00 60.00 Exempt

P
age 95



Other Housing Fees

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 VAT LIABILITY

£ £ £
Property inspection and report (per
hour) 95.00 0.00 95.00 Exempt

Page 96



APPENDIX 4PROPERTY SERVICES

Proposed Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Naming of a new street £92.80 per street. £92.80 per street. Non business - no VAT charge
Renaming of an existing street at the request of all of its residents. £92.80 for the street plus

£23.20 per dwelling
£92.80 for the street plus

£23.20 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on an existing street. £34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge
Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 1 – 5 plots.

£34.80 per dwelling £34.80 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 6 – 10 plots.

£ 29.00 per dwelling £ 29.00 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 11 - 29 plots.

£ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 30 - 74 plots.

£ 17.40 per dwelling £ 17.40 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Naming or numbering of a new dwelling on a new development
consisting of 75 + plots

£13.35 per dwelling £13.35 per dwelling
Non business - no VAT charge

Addition or alteration of a name to an existing dwelling. £ 34.80 per dwelling £ 34.80 per dwelling Non business - no VAT charge
Changes to a development after initial application for naming and
numbering has been processed. £ 23.20 per dwelling £ 23.20 per dwelling Non business - no VAT chargeP

age 97



APPENDIX 4

3% Proposed
Charges Increase Charges VAT
2021/22 2022/23 2022/23 LIABILITY

£ £ £
Hire of Council Chamber 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Meeting Room 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Committee Room 22.70 0.70 23.40 Standard rate
Hire of Haven Room 11.30 0.30 11.60 Standard rate
Hire of Maud Foster 11.30 0.30 11.60 Standard rate
Refreshments at meetings 16.10 0.50 16.60 Standard rate
Sale of Electoral Registers - FIXED BY STATUTE

* These charges are per hour of rental

CIVIC AND ELECTORAL

P
age 98



APPENDIX 5

Reserve Purpose Transfers    In Transfers Out
Balance
31.03.22 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.23 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.24 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.25 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.26 Transfers    In Transfers Out

Balance
31.03.27

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £ £ £'000 £ £ £'000 £ £ £'000

Capital Funding (950) 663 (5,626) (50) 1,833 (3,843) (344) 1,171 (3,016) (344) 115 (3,245) (344) 115 (3,474) (344) 115 (3,703)

Transformation Reserve (31) 730 (1,046) (31) 30 (1,048) 0 0 (1,048) - - (1,048) 0 - (1,048) 0 0 (1,048)

Repairs and Renewals -35 8 (752) (35) 0 (787) (35) 0 (823) 35- 0 (858) (35) 0 (893) (35) 0 (928)

ICT Reserve 0 50 (226) 0 70 (156) 0 20 (136) 0 94 (42) 0 - (42) 0 0 (42)

Housing Reserve (287) 60 (1,474) (75) 124 (1,425) (72) 105 (1,392) (68) 3 (1,458) (67) 3 (1,522) (65) 3 (1,585)

Controlling Migration 0 14 (0) 0 0 (0) 0 0 (0) - - (0) - - (0) 0 0 (0)

Climate Change Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 0 - 0 0 0 0

Insurance Reserve 0 20 (254) 0 0 (254) 0 0 (254) - - (254) 0 0 (254) 0 0 (254)

Community Cohesion Reserve 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property Fund Returns Risk Mitigation Reserve 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) - - (1,116) 0 0 (1,116) 0 0 (1,116)

Funding Volatility Reserve 0 1,573 (4,948) 0 2,912 (2,036) 0 0 (2,036) - - (2,036) 0 0 (2,036) 0 0 (2,036)

Covid 19 -73 47 (1,448) 0 500 (948) 0 0 (948) 0 - (948) 0 - (948) 0 0 (948)

(1,377) 3,165 (16,891) (192) 5,470 (11,613) (451) 1,296 (10,769) (447) 212 (11,004) (446) 118 (11,332) (444) 118 (11,659)

EARMARKED RESERVES MOVEMENTS SUMMARY

P
age 99



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO: Corporate and Community Committee

DATE: 17 February 2022

SUBJECT:

PURPOSE:

Benefits Verification Policy

To define the standards of verification for evidence required in
respect of Housing Benefit claims and Local Council Tax Support
applications, to help protect public funds from fraud and error.

KEY DECISION: N/A

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for Finance

REPORT OF:

REPORT AUTHOR:

Samantha Knowles, Assistant Director - Finance

Sharon Hammond, Head of Revenues and Benefits

WARD(S) AFFECTED: All

EXEMPT REPORT? The Appendix to this report is exempt by virtue of paragraph 7 of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 because it contains
information relating to the process and approach to evidence and
verification which should not be made public due to the sensitivity in
protection against fraud and error.

SUMMARY

This report proposes the introduction of a Benefits Verification Policy from 1 April 2022, to
replace the current Risk Based Verification Policy.

The policy defines the standards of verification for evidence required in respect of Housing
Benefit claims and Local Council Tax Support applications, to help protect public funds from
fraud and error.

Page 101

Agenda Item 2



RECOMMENDATIONS

i) That Corporate and Community Committee consider the Benefits Verification Policy,
and recommends approval to Cabinet for its implementation with effect from 1 April
2022, replacing the current Risk Based Verification Policy, and

ii) That subsequent reviews and revisions are delegated to the Section 151 Officer and
Portfolio Holder for Finance.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

This will provide a fit for purpose policy, ensuring processes and controls are robust to prevent
fraud and error, and at the same time balance the need for ease of access for the customer, and
efficiency in the processing and decision making of claims.

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

Retain a risk based approach to verification.  This would require an overhaul of the current Risk
Based Verification Policy, and revision of processes and controls.

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 Since 2012 verification of evidence for new Housing Benefit (HB) claims and Council Tax
Support (CTS) applications made to Boston BC have been administered under a Risk Based
Verification policy.

1.2 Risk-Based Verification (RBV) was extended to local authorities on a voluntary basis, with
clear requirements and expectations set out by Department for Work and Pensions (DWP)
for authorities that chose to adopt this approach. The adoption of RBV allowed for
resources to be targeted towards those cases with greater risk of fraud and error.

1.3 The timing for this review is important because an RBV policy, once in place for a financial
year, cannot be changed in-year due to the complications this would cause in the Housing
Benefit subsidy audit process.

2. REASONS FOR REVIEW

2.1 There are several reasons why a review of the approach to the verification of Housing
Benefit claims and Council Tax Support applications is now timely.  These include: -

i) The changed profile of work type and claimant base, since the introduction of Universal
Credit in 2018, has substantially reduced the earlier benefits of RBV.

Page 102



There are now fewer new claims for Housing Benefit as claimants move onto Universal
Credit.  The administration and governance required under a Risk Based Verification
policy is now disproportionate to the original benefits.  The following table shows how
volumes of HB new claims processed have reduced in the last few years.

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

HB New Claims Processed 1627 1051 322 291

ii) Should the Council wish to continue with a risk-based approach to verification, the
current RBV policy would need to be overhauled to ensure it is fit for purpose for the
current times, and to ensure appropriate operational and governance processes and
procedures are in place as necessary to satisfy DWP expectations in relation to Housing
Benefit, which would be tested through the subsidy audit process.

iii) Currently, different standards of verification apply to new claims and changes in
circumstances; new claims are subject to RBV but changes are not.
This results in different evidence requirements. Through this review we can simplify the
requirements into a single policy and standardise the approach.

iv) The South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership (S&ELCP) provides the opportunity
to align and standardise a single approach and policy for all three councils, delivered by
Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd (PSPS). (East Lindsey and South Holland District
Councils replaced their risk-based approach to verification of HB claims and CTS
applications in 2019).

v) In line with the digital and transformational aspirations of the Council and PSPS, it is
anticipated that electronic forms will be introduced in the future that enable customers
to carry out their business online. A standard approach to evidence requirements will
help to simplify the administrative process for the customer experience.

2.2 This review has considered the type and nature of evidence that is acceptable, and the
verification that is required to ensure processes and controls remain robust to prevent
fraud and error, but at the same time balance the need for ease of access for the customer,
and efficiency in the processing and decision making of claims.

3. BENEFITS VERIFICATION POLICY

3.1. It is proposed that the current Risk Based Verification (RBV) Policy is replaced from 1 April
2022 with the Benefits Verification Policy provided at Appendix A to this report.  This will
return to an approach which requires a standard and consistent evidence and verification
process for all new claims and changes.

3.2. In developing this policy there has been regard to the level of verification DWP expect of
local authorities. Whilst there is no longer a definitive verification framework, there is
guidance which local authorities must have regard to.

Page 103



3.3. The proposed Benefits Verification Policy provides for a robust approach to the verification
of HB and CTS claims and changes, protecting public funds through helping prevent fraud
and error entering the benefit system, and ensures that processes and controls are robust
to protect Housing Benefit subsidy.

3.4 Operationally, the introduction of a standard verification will help to ensure consistency in
approach in relation to the assessment processing and decision making perspective, but
also for the customer, and the Customer Contact team being the first point of contact for
many customers.

3.5 The policy sets out the position for accepting electronic documents in certain
circumstances, recognising the changing landscape whereby customer documents might
well now be available electronically rather than in paper copy, such as bank statements and
payslips, and provision is made for how this information might be provided.

3.6 Further, the policy provides for situations where a claimant’s identify and evidence has
already been verified by DWP, and how this can be accepted for the purpose of HB and CTS
claims, including Universal Credit claimants where Boston BC will, in the main, be notified of
changes to awards.

3.7 The Policy has been considered by Lincolnshire County Council Interim Principal Auditor
who has endorsed the following statement: -

Internal Audit are satisfied that the proposed changes to the verification process are
adequate and fit for purpose in the current climate. The level of verification is not reducing
and so this process continues to ensure a considerable level of evidence is required before
processing a claim ( in line with policy) in order to prevent fraud and error.

Trends show that new claims are decreasing due to more claimants being on UC and as such
changing the verification approach allows more flexibility and opportunity for resource to be
directed to the areas of greatest risk across HB and CTS (in both new claims and changes in
circumstances).

The acceptance of electronic bank statements and payslips is a risk in respect of documents
being doctored; however there has been a significant increase in internet banking and
employers providing electronic payslips that this is much more the common evidence.
Mitigating this risk is the data received directly from HMRC in respect of earnings’.

3.8 With the fast-changing climate, regular review of the policy will be important to ensure it
continues to reflect the changing environment such as the ongoing roll out and final
migration to Universal Credit over the coming years, and also as we progress with
digitalisation including increased online claim forms and change in circumstances forms.
This will ensure the approach to evidence and verification remains current, and robust to
protect public funds, and also to ensure that the process is as streamlined as possible for
the customer, and efficient in administration.

3.9 Whilst this policy considers the approach to evidence and verification at the ‘gateway’,
there will continue to be a range of interventions carried out on claims, targeted towards
those which represent greatest potential risk of fraud and error. The council also
participates in a number of national data matching activities which all support the
protection of public funds.

Page 104



4. CONCLUSION

4.1. The Benefits Verification Policy sets out a clear and consistent standard for the evidence
requirements and verification to support Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support new
claims and changes in circumstances. This policy is fit for purpose in the current
environment, and provides for a robust approach to the verification of HB and CTS claims
and changes, protecting public funds through helping prevent fraud and error entering the
benefit system, and ensures that controls are robust to protect Housing Benefit subsidy.

EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP

This will align the policy and process across the S&ELCP.

IMPLICATIONS

SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP

None

CORPORATE PRIORITIES

None

STAFFING

None

CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

None

DATA PROTECTION

None

FINANCIAL

There are no direct financial implications of this report and the introduction of a Benefits
Verification Policy is designed to protect public funds as outlined in the main body of the report.
For information Housing Benefit is subsidised by the Department for Work and Pensions (DWP)
and the Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) forms part of the Collection Fund for which the
cost is shared between Lincolnshire County Council, the Police and Crime Commissioner and
Boston Borough Council of which the council’s share is approximately 10%.

Page 105



RISK MANAGEMENT

Local authorities that choose to adopt a risk based approach to verification must ensure that all
DWP requirements for process, management and governance of the policy are met.  Failure to do
so can introduce a risk, potential financial loss, through the subsidy audit process.

The move to the new Benefits Verification Policy will introduce a standard approach to verification
across all claimants, regardless of circumstances, thereby removing the risk of failure to adhere to
risk profiling and RBV policy requirements.

STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES

Consultation  has taken place with the Section 151 Officer, and the Portfolio Holder for Finance,
and this Corporate and Community Committee, ahead of the decision making report to Cabinet on
23 February 2022.

REPUTATION

None

CONTRACTS

None

CRIME AND DISORDER

None

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING

None

HEALTH AND WELL BEING

None

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

None

ACRONYMS

HB – Housing Benefit

Page 106



CTS – Council Tax Support

RBV – Risk Based Verification

DWP – Department for Work and Pensions

S&ELCP – South and East Lincolnshire Council Partnership

PSPS – Public Sector Partnership Services Ltd

APPENDICES

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: -

APPENDIX A Benefits Verification Policy (Confidential)

BACKGROUND PAPERS

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used
in the production of this report.

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.

REPORT APPROVAL

Report author: Sharon Hammond

Head of Revenues and Benefits

Sharon.hammond@pspsl.co.uk

Signed off by: Samantha Knowles

Assistant Director – Finance

sknowles@sholland.gov.uk

Approved for publication: Councillor Jonathan Noble, Portfolio Holder for
Finance

Page 107

mailto:Sharon.hammond@pspsl.co.uk
mailto:sknowles@sholland.gov.uk


FINANCE PROFORMA

PROFORMA FOR APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES

(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS)

FROM:

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED

REPORT:
REPORT DATE:

OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Revenue

Total Revenue Cost

Funding required: Considered by: Date:
Total capital cost £ Enter committee here

Revenue cost £ Enter Council or
Cabinet/Executive here

Financial Services Comments

Risk

Procurement

Value for Money Efficiency

This FP is valid for 3 months from
FP date

If this FP is no longer required please
advise Finance

If there are changes to the original report it
may invalidate this document, it must be

reviewed by Finance.

Page 108



Document is Restricted

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 

 

 

MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

PRESENTED OR 
FACILITATED BY 

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER (PFH) 

    

6 JULY 2021 
 

1. Contract Arrangements – Fly Tipping Enforcement 
2. Scrutiny Panel Topic – Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance  

Andy Fisher 
James Gilbert  

Cllr Jonathan Noble  
-  

    

20 JULY 2021  South East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership James Gilbert  Cllr Nigel Welton  
    

17 AUG 2021   Community Governance Review Lorraine Bush Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

16 SEPT 2021 
 

 Pilgrim Hospital Operating Model – A debate with representatives 
from the Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group (LCCG) and 
United Lincolnshire Hospitals NHS Trust (ULHT) 

Chairman /  
Andy Fisher   

  

Cllr Martin Griggs 
 
 

    

4 NOV 2021 
 

1. Joint BBC-ELDC Scrutiny of the Strategic Alliance – Report by 
the Joint Scrutiny Panel Chairman 

2. Local Council Tax Support Scheme 2022/23 
3. Local Government Association (LGA) Peer Review – Progress 

Update  
4. Annual Review of the Corporate Strategy  

Cllr Judith Skinner 
 

Sharon Hammond 
James Gilbert 

 
“ 

- 
 

Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Paul Skinner 

 
Cllr Nigel Welton 

    

13 JAN 2022 CANCELLED   
    

17 FEB 2022 1. Budget 2022/23. 
2. Benefits Verification Policy 
3. Cultural Strategy 

Samantha Knowles 
Sharon Hammond 

Lydia Ruisling 

Cllr Jonathan Noble 
Cllr Jonathan Noble 

Cllr Paul Skinner 

    

7 APRIL 2022 
 

1. Mayoralty Item  
2. Centrepoint Outreach and Council Homelessness Services 

  with Elizabeth Hopkins, Centrepoint Outreach Chief Executive 
3. Annual Safeguarding Report 

Lorraine Bush 
Phil Startin 

 
Ian Dunn 

 

Cllr Nigel Welton 
Cllr Martin Griggs 

 
Cllr Paul Skinner 

 

    

26 MAY 2022 
 

   

    

 
 

 

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 3



 

P
age 118


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	Minutes of meeting held on the 16 September 2021

	1 DRAFT BUDGET REPORT AND MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2022-23 TO 2026-27
	Appendix A.  Cabinet Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022-23 to 2026-27.
	Appendix 1. Summary of Net Revenues Expenditure by Portfolio Holder
	Appendix 2. Summary of Service Area
	Appendix 3. Corporate Charges Policy
	Appendix 4. Fees Charges
	Appendix 5. Earmarked Reserves

	2 BENEFITS VERIFICATION POLICY
	EXEMPT Appendix A - Boston BC Benefits Verification Policy

	3 WORK PROGRAMME

